
 

Ffon/Tel: 01656 643643 Facs/Fax:01656 668126  Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk 

Negeseuon SMS/SMS Messaging: 07581 157014 Twitter@bridgendCBC  Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk 

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun 

Test relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service 

Rydym yn croseawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod I ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich dewis 
iaith. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh. 

 
 Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive’s Directorate 

Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 643694 / 643513 
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

 
Ein cyf / Our ref:       

Eich cyf / Your ref:       
 

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Llun, 1 Rhagfyr 2025 

 
Annwyl Cynghorydd,  
 
PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR 
TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) 
 
Cynhelir Cyfarfod Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Cymunedau, yr Amgylchedd a Thai (Pwyllgor 
Trosolwg a Chraffu Pwnc 3 yn Flaenorol) Hybrid yn Siambr y Cyngor - Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr 
Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr, CF31 4WB / o bell drwy Microsoft Teams ar Dydd Llun, 8 Rhagfyr 
2025 am 16:00. 
 
AGENDA 
 
1 Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb 

 
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau. 
 

2 Datganiadau o fuddiant 
 

Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008.  
 

3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion 
3 - 12 

I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 29/09/25 and 03/10/25.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


4 Adfywio Porthcawl 
13 - 48 

Gwahoddwyr: 
 
Y Cynghorydd Neelo Farr - Aelod Cabinet dros Adfywiad, Datblygiad Economaidd a Thai 
 
Janine Nightingale - Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol – Cymunedau 
 
Delyth Webb – Rheolwr Grŵp – Adfywio Strategol 
Jacob Lawrence - Rheolwr Rhaglen Adfywio Porthcawl 
 

5 Casgliadau ac Argymhellion
 

 
6 Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith

49 - 76 
 

7 Materion Brys 
 

I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn y 
dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r Rheolau 
Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad. 
 

 
Nodyn:  Bydd hwn yn gyfarfod Hybrid a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion mynychu trwy Siambr y 
Cyngor, Swyddfeydd Dinesig, Stryd yr Angel, Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr / o bell Trwy Timau Microsoft. 
Bydd y cyfarfod cael ei recordio i’w drosglwyddo drwy wefan y Cyngor.  Os oes gennych unrhyw 
gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643148 / 
643694 / 643513 / 643159 
 
Yn ddiffuant 
K Watson 
Prif Swyddog, Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Rheoleiddio, AD a Pholisi Corfforaethol 
 
Dosbarthiad: 
 
Cynghorwr: 
H T Bennett 
JPD Blundell 
N Clarke 
O Clatworthy 
RJ Collins 
C Davies 
C L C Davies 
GC Haines 
W J Kendall 
J E Pratt 
G Walter 
I Williams 
MJ Williams 
T Wood 



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) - DYDD LLUN, 29 MEDI 
2025 

 
COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU AR Y CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A 
CHRAFFU AR BWNC 3 GYNT) A GYNHALIWYD YN HYBRID YN SIAMBR Y CYNGOR – Y SWYDDFEYDD DINESIG, STRYD YR ANGEL, PEN-Y-
BONT AR OGWR, CF31 4WB DDYDD LLUN, 29 MEDI 2025 AM 16:00 
 

Presennol 
 

Y Cynghorydd JPD Blundell – Cadeirydd 
 
O Clatworthy GC Haines   

Presennol yn Rhithwir 
 

H T Bennett N Clarke RJ Collins C Davies 
C L C Davies W J Kendall J E Pratt I Williams 
MJ Williams    
 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
G Walter a T Wood 
 
Gwahoddedigion: 
Y Cynghorydd Neelo Farr Aelod y Cabinet dros Adfywio, Datblygiad Economaidd a Thai   
  
Carys Lord Prif Swyddog – Cyllid, Tai a Newid 
Janine Nightingale Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol  - Y Cymunedau 
 

Martin Morgans Pennaeth Gweithrediadau Dros Dro – Gwasanaethau Cymunedol  
Ryan Jones Rheolwr Comisiynu Tai Strategol  
Lisa Jones Arweinydd y Tîm Cyllid Adfywio ac Ymgysylltiad Rhanbarthol  
  
Joanne Norman Rheolwr Grŵp Dros Dro – Cynllunio Ariannol a Rheoli’r Gyllideb  
Samantha Ready Cyfrifydd Prosiect  
Robert Frowen Rheolwr y Tîm Datblygu Economaidd  
Joanne Ginn Arweinydd y Tîm Datrysiadau Tai  
 
Swyddogion: 
Stephen Griffiths Swyddog Craffu Dros Dro  
Michael Pitman 
 
 

Swyddog Cymorth Technegol – y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd 

P
age 3

A
genda Item

 3



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) - DYDD LLUN, 29 MEDI 
2025 

 
Datganiadau o Fuddiannau 
 
H Bennett – Personol – Eitem 4 – Y cyflogwr yn derbyn arian Cronfa Ffyniant a Rennir y Deyrnas Unedig (UKSPF) ac eitem 7- Aelod o Gyngor Tref a 
Chymuned.  
J Pratt – Personol – Eitem 4 – Aelod Etholedig o Gyngor Tref Porthcawl.  
M Williams – Personol – Eitem 4 – Aelod Etholedig o Gyngor Cymuned Coety Uchaf.  
I Williams – Personol – Eitem 4 – Aelod Etholedig o Gyngor Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr ac yn rhan o gyrff sy’n derbyn arian UKSPF. 
W Kendall – Personol – Eitem 4 – Aelod Etholedig o Gyngor Cymuned Bracla  
N Farr – Personol – Eitem 4 – Aelod Etholedig o Gyngor Tref Porthcawl.  
 
 

110. Cymeradwyo Cofnodion  
 

 

Y Penderfyniad Wnaed 
 

PENDERFYNWYD: 
 
Cymeradwyo cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu ar y Cymunedau, yr Amgylchedd a Thai 
dyddiedig 14 Gorffennaf 2025 fel cofnod gwir a chywir. 
 

Dyddiad Gwneud y Penderfyniad 
 

29 Medi 2025 

 
 

111. Cronfa Ffyniant a Rennir y Deyrnas Unedig  
 

 

Y Penderfyniad Wnaed 
 

PENDERFYNWYD:  
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaethau manwl gydag Aelod o’r Cabinet ac Uwch Swyddogion, gwnaeth y 
Pwyllgor yr argymhelliad canlynol ynghyd â cheisiadau am wybodaeth ychwanegol: 
 
Argymhelliad: 
 
1. Bu’r aelodau’n trafod dull y Cyngor a nodir yn y Cynllun Buddsoddi Lleol, o ymdrin â Chronfa Ffyniant 

a Rennir y Deyrnas Unedig (UKSPF), oedd wedi pwysleisio tair thema - Cymunedau a Lle, Cefnogi 
Busnesau Lleol, a Phobl a Sgiliau. Er bod y Pwyllgor yn cydnabod bod llawer o brosiectau gwahanol 
ar draws y Fwrdeistref Sirol wedi cael eu hariannu, mynegwyd hefyd nad oedd llinyn arweiniol yn y 
dull, na disgrifiad clir a thryloyw o’r modd y cafodd prosiectau eu blaenoriaethu na’r ffordd yr oedd eu 
llwyddiant a'u gwerth yn cael ei fesur. Felly, argymhellodd y Pwyllgor y dylai'r dull o ariannu 

P
age 4



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) - DYDD LLUN, 29 MEDI 
2025 

 

prosiectau olynydd UKSPF yn y dyfodol nodi'r canlynol yn rhagweithiol ac yn eglur: 
 
a. Y nodau strategol arweiniol.  
b. Penderfynu beth yw pwrpas y prosiect a beth y dylai ei gyflawni.  
c. Yr amcanion, y targedau a'r allbynnau y cytunwyd arnynt.  
d. Y meini prawf ar gyfer dyfarnu grantiau.  
e. Y mesuriadau llwyddiant a gwerth oedd i gael eu monitro.  
f.  Y dull o gynllunio wrth gefn. 

 
Gwybodaeth Ychwanegol y Gofynnwyd Amdani: 
 
2. Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am adroddiad monitro terfynol UKSPF, gan gynnwys dadansoddiad cyflawn 

o'r llwyddiannau a'r gwersi a ddysgwyd ar gyfer prosiectau yn y dyfodol, i’r Pwyllgor gael ei ystyried 
cyn gynted â phosibl ac i gynnwys: 
 
a. manylion sut y cafodd y cyhoedd, busnesau a chyrff cymunedol eu hysbysu a'u cynorthwyo i 

wneud defnydd llawn o'r cyllid oedd ar gael, gan gynnwys sut y gwnaeth Fframwaith 
Cydgynhyrchu Ffyniant Sir Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr sicrhau proses wybodus o wneud penderfyniadau 
ynghylch Cronfa Ffyniant a Rennir y Deyrnas Unedig;  

b. gwybodaeth fanwl ynghylch yr astudiaethau dichonoldeb a gyllidwyd drwy’r UKSPF a faint 
ohonynt sydd wedi dod neu’n mynd i ddod yn brosiectau hyfyw; 

c. gwerthusiad manwl o gynaladwyedd swyddi a grëwyd ar draws y tair thema o ganlyniad i gyllid 
Cronfa Ffyniant a Rennir y Deyrnas Unedig, gan gynnwys y prosesau monitro a'r gefnogaeth a 
gynigiwyd gan Gyngor Bwrdeistref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr; a  

d. gwybodaeth fanwl am yr effaith a gafodd y toriad mewn cyllid yn ystod y flwyddyn bontio ar 
brosiectau yn y gymuned. 
 

3. Nododd y Pwyllgor fod diffyg eglurder ynghylch sut beth fyddai olynydd UKSPF a sut y byddai'n 
gweithio a gofynnodd, unwaith y byddai hyn yn hysbys, y câi'r Aelodau dderbyn gwybodaeth 
amdano, gan gynnwys manylion y cynigion ar gyfer ymgysylltu â chymunedau drwy strwythurau 
partneriaeth y Cyngor ynghylch y meini prawf i wneud cais am gyllid.  

 
4.  Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am ragor o wybodaeth am y cymorth y gellid ei ddarparu i sefydliadau i wneud 

cais am ffynonellau cyllid eraill, unwaith y byddai cyllid UKSPF wedi dod i ben.  
 
5.  Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am ddosbarthu i'r Aelodau adroddiadau blaenorol ynglŷn â UKSPF a 

ystyriwyd gan bwyllgorau craffu. 

P
age 5



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) - DYDD LLUN, 29 MEDI 
2025 

 

  

Dyddiad Gwneud y Penderfyniad 
 

29 Medi 2025 

 
112. Polisi Dyrannu Tai Cymdeithasol  

 
 

Y Penderfyniad Wnaed 
 

PENDERFYNWYD:  
 
Yn dilyn ystyriaeth a thrafodaethau manwl gydag Aelod o’r Cabinet ac Uwch Swyddogion, gwnaeth y 
Pwyllgor yr argymhelliad canlynol ynghyd â cheisiadau am wybodaeth ychwanegol: 
 
Argymhelliad: 
 

4. Mynegodd y Pwyllgor bryder bod oddeutu 3,300 o bobl ar y gofrestr tai a bod angen taer i fynd i'r 
afael â'r diffyg cyfatebiaeth sylfaenol yn y Fwrdeistref Sirol rhwng y galw am dai a'r cyflenwad o 
dai oedd ar gael, yn enwedig tai cymdeithasol. Felly, argymhellodd y Pwyllgor: 
 
a. Bod Cyfarwyddiaeth y Cymunedau’n ymchwilio’n fanwl, ac yn ystyried syniadau posibl i fynd 

i’r afael â’r diffyg yn y cyflenwad tai; a  
b. Bod y Strategaeth a’r Cynlluniau Gweithredu yn cael eu diweddaru gan nodi’r camau oedd yn 

cael eu cymryd i fynd i’r afael â’r sefyllfa hon ar frys. 
 
Gwybodaeth Ychwanegol y Gofynnwyd Amdani: 
 

5. Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am ddarparu sesiwn Friffio i'r Holl Aelodau ynghylch y Polisi diwygiedig o 
Ddyrannu Tai Cymdeithasol a sut y bydd yn newid, yn enwedig o ran y bandiau a sut y caiff tai eu 
dyrannu. 
 

6. Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am wybodaeth ychwanegol ynghylch effaith Cynllun Cenedl Noddfa 
Llywodraeth Cymru ar y Polisi Dyrannu Tai Cymdeithasol drafft.  
 

7. Gofynnodd y Pwyllgor am wybodaeth ychwanegol ynghylch y prosesau adolygu statudol ac 
anstatudol, gan gynnwys y nifer, y canlyniadau, a'r camau oedd yn cael eu cymryd i sicrhau 
tegwch a chysondeb wrth gymhwyso’r polisi. 

 

Dyddiad Gwneud y Penderfyniad 29 Medi 2025 
 

P
age 6



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) - DYDD LLUN, 29 MEDI 
2025 

 
 

 
113. Adroddiad Gwybodaeth - Chwarter 4 / Perfformiad Diwedd Blwyddyn 

2024-25 
 

 

Y Penderfyniad Wnaed 
 

PENDERFYNWYD:  
 
Bu’r Pwyllgor yn ystyried cynnwys yr adroddiad Gwybodaeth am adroddiad Chwarter 4 / Perfformiad 
Diwedd Blwyddyn 2024-25, y Dangosfwrdd Perfformiad Corfforaethol Chwarter 4 – Diwedd Blwyddyn 
2024-25 a'r Traciwr Rheoleiddio a ddiweddarwyd ar gyfer Chwarter 4 2024-25 o fewn cylch gwaith y 
Pwyllgor, ac roeddent yn cadw’r dangosfwrdd a'r traciwr mewn golwg wrth ystyried adroddiad 
Blaenraglen Waith y Pwyllgor. 

 
Dyddiad Gwneud y Penderfyniad 
 

29 Medi 2025 

 
 

114. Diweddariad y Flaenraglen Waith  
 

 

Y Penderfyniad Wnaed 
 

PENDERFYNWYD: 
 
Bod y Pwyllgor yn cymeradwyo'r Flaenraglen Waith (BW) yn Atodiad A yn amodol ar gynnwys y 
ceisiadau canlynol, yn nodi Taflen Weithredu Monitro'r Argymhellion yn Atodiad B ac yn nodi yr adroddid 
am y Flaenraglen Waith fel y'i cymeradwywyd gan y Pwyllgor wrth gyfarfod nesaf y Pwyllgor Trosolwg a 
Chraffu Corfforaethol er gwybodaeth: 
 
a. Yr Adroddiad Monitro Terfynol ar Gronfa Ffyniant a Rennir y DU (UKSPF) i gynnwys y wybodaeth 

yng Nghais 2 uchod.   
 

b. Digartrefedd a Thai i gynnwys:  
Pobl sy'n ymgyflwyno fel pobl ddigartref neu’n bosibl o ddod yn ddigartref, y mae gan yr Awdurdod 
Lleol ddyletswydd gyfreithiol derfynol i sicrhau llety addas ar eu cyfer, y cynlluniau strategol i fynd i'r 
afael â'r diffyg cyfatebiaeth rhwng y cyflenwad tai a'r galw am dai, yn enwedig tai cymdeithasol. 
 

c. Gwaith stryd / Cyfleustodau i gynnwys: taliadau a dadansoddiad o'r cyfleustodau a'r perfformiad.    
 

Dyddiad Gwneud y Penderfyniad 29 Medi 2025 

P
age 7



PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) - DYDD LLUN, 29 MEDI 
2025 

 
 

115. Eitemau Brys 
 

 

Y Penderfyniad Wnaed 
 

Dim 

Dyddiad Gwneud y Penderfyniad 
 

29 Medi 2025 

 
 
I wylio rhagor o’r ddadl a gafwyd ar yr eitemau uchod, cliciwch y ddolen hon. 
 
  
Daeth y cyfarfod i ben am 18:44.  
 
 
 
 

P
age 8

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=396&MId=4906&Ver=4


CYFARFOD ARBENNIG O'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A 
CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) - DYDD GWENER, 3 HYDREF 2025 

This document is available in English / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Saesneg 

COFNOD PENDERFYNIAD CYFARFOD EITHRIADOL O BWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFINO CYMUNEDAU, AMGYLCHEDD A THAI 
(PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFINO PWNC 3 YN GYNT) A GYNHALIWYD HYBRID IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER - CIVIC OFFICES, 
ANGEL STREET, BRIDGEND, CF31 4WB AR DYDD GWENER, 3 HYDREF 2025 11:30 
 

Presennol 
 

Y Cynghorydd JPD Blundell – Cadeirydd  
 
H T Bennett O Clatworthy GC Haines  
MJ Williams    
 

Presennol – O Bell  
 
N Clarke 
I Williams 

C Davies 
T Wood  

W J Kendall J E Pratt  
 
 

 
Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb 
 
RJ Collins a/ac G Walter 
 
 
Gwahoddedigion: 
 
Councillor Neelo Farr    Aelod Cabinet dros Adfywiad, Datblygiad Economaidd a Thai 
Councillor Paul Davies       Aelod Cabinet dros Newid yn yr Hinsawdd a’r Amgylchedd 
 
Janine Nightingale Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol - Cymunedau 
Nicola Lewis Arweinydd Tîm Prosiectau Adfywio 

 
Swyddogion: 
 
Kelly Watson 
Meryl Lawrence 

Swyddog Monitro 
Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Craffu 

Jessica Mclellan Swyddog Craffu 

P
age 9



CYFARFOD ARBENNIG O'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A 
CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) - DYDD GWENER, 3 HYDREF 2025 

This document is available in English / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Saesneg 

  
Datganiadau o Ddiddordeb 
 
Y Cynghorwyr Tim Wood a Steven Easterbrook – Personol – Eitem 3 – Masnachwyr Canol Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 
 

119. Galw i Mewn Benderfyniad y Cabinet i Mewn - Mynediad i Ganol Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr 
 

 

Y Penderfyniad a wnaed 
 

Cynghorodd y Swyddog Craffu, yn unol ag Adran 7.23 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor, fod pedwar Aelod o’r 
Pwyllgorau Trosolwg a Chraffu, ac un Cadeirydd Craffu, wedi gofyn am Alw i Mewn benderfyniad 
Gweithredol a wnaed gan y Cabinet ar 23 Medi 2025 mewn perthynas â Mynediad i Ganol Tref Pen-y-
bont ar Ogwr.   
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelodau a oedd wedi cefnogi’r Alwad i Mewn i siarad am y rhesymau 
amdani ac fe wnaethant gyfeirio at y rhesymau dros yr Alwad i Mewn, fel y manylir yn yr Hysbysiad o 
Alwad i Mewn (Atodiad B).  
 
Gwahoddodd y Cadeirydd Aelodau’r Pwyllgor i ofyn cwestiynau ac yna cafwyd trafodaethau manwl 
rhwng yr Aelodau, Aelodau’r Cabinet, a Swyddogion. 
 
Gan nad oedd unrhyw gwestiynau pellach i’r gwahoddedigion, diolchodd y Cadeirydd iddynt am eu 
presenoldeb ac fe wnaethant adael y cyfarfod ar ôl y bleidlais.  
 
Gan ystyried a oedd yr Aelodau’n fodlon â’r ymatebion a dderbyniwyd, gofynnodd y Cadeirydd i 
Aelodau’r Pwyllgor a oeddent yn dymuno:  
 

a) Cyfeirio’r penderfyniad yn ôl at y Cabinet i’w ailystyried, gan nodi’r rhesymau a’r sail resymegol 
dros y cais; 

neu 
b) Benderfynu peidio â chyfeirio’r mater yn ôl at y Cabinet. 

 
PENDERFYNWYD:   Yn dilyn archwiliad o’r penderfyniad a thrafodaethau manwl gydag 

Aelodau’r Cabinet a’r Swyddogion a wahoddwyd, penderfynodd y Pwyllgor 
argymell bod y penderfyniad yn cael ei gyfeirio’n ôl at y Cabinet i’w 
ailystyried am y rhesymau a nodir yn y Ffurflen Hysbysiad o Alwad i Mewn 
yn Atodiad B ac am y rhesymau a nodir isod:  

P
age 10



CYFARFOD ARBENNIG O'R PWYLLGOR CRAFFU PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU CYMUNEDAU, YR AMGYLCHEDD A THAI (PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A 
CHRAFFU PWNC 3 YN FLAENOROL) - DYDD GWENER, 3 HYDREF 2025 

This document is available in English / Mae’r ddogfen hon ar gael yn Saesneg 

 
a. Nid oes gan y Gorchymyn Rheoleiddio Traffig Arbrofol (ETRO) amserlen glir, sy’n nodi i fasnachwyr 
a’r cyhoedd y gwahanol gamau a’r estyniadau posibl a gymerir yn ystod y Gorchymyn 18 mis. 
 
b. Mae’r ETRO yn canolbwyntio ar ymestyn amseroedd llwytho a dadlwytho, ond mae diffyg ystyriaeth 
o ran cydraddoldeb mynediad i ganol y dref, gan gynnwys parcio i ddeiliaid bathodyn glas a phwyslais 
annigonol ar yr asesiad o effaith ar gydraddoldeb. 
 
c. Mae diffyg eglurder ynghylch yr hyn a fydd yn cael ei fesur, i gofnodi effeithiau’r newidiadau a 
wnaed, y mecanwaith ar gyfer mesur, a’r hyn fydd yn cael ei adrodd yn ôl i’r Pwyllgor. 
 
d.  Dylid cynnwys mwy o dystiolaeth a gwybodaeth fanwl yn cyfiawnhau’r rheswm dros benderfyniadau 
yn adroddiadau’r Cabinet. 
 
e. Mae angen eglurhad, gan nad oes awydd i ailagor Canol Tref Pen-y-bont ar Ogwr yn llwyr i draffig, 
fod Stryd Adare, Stryd Caroline a Stryd Wyndham wedi’u heithrio o’r ETRO. 
 

Dyddiad gwneud y penderfyniad 
 

3 Hydref 2025 

 
 
I arsylwi dadl bellach a gynhaliwyd ar yr eitemau uchod, cliciwch ar y ddolen hon 
 
Terfynwyd y cyfarfod yn 12:58 

P
age 11

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=396&MId=4969


T
his page is intentionally left blank



   

 

 
Meeting of:  

 
COMMUNITIES, ENVIRONMENT AND HOUSING OVERVIEW 

AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
8 DECEMBER 2025  

 

 
Report Title:  

 
PORTHCAWL REGENERATION 

 

 
Report Owner: 
Responsible Chief 
Officer / Cabinet 
Member 
 

 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR COMMUNITIES 

CABINET MEMBER FOR REGENERATION, ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT AND HOUSING. 

 
Responsible Officer:  

 
JACOB LAWRENCE 

PORTHCAWL REGENERATION PROGRAMME MANAGER 
 

 
Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

 
The Porthcawl Waterfront Regeneration Scheme (PWRS) is a 
strategically important regeneration opportunity that will 
deliver upon the policies within the Local Development Plan. 
  

 
Executive 
Summary:  
 

 
The report provides an update on the Porthcawl Waterfront 
Regeneration Programme with particular focus on the recent 
consultation carried out in connection with the proposed 
Masterplan. Further updates are provided in connection with 
the completion of further technical assessment, market 
engagement and design development to ensure the 
Masterplan remains viable and deliverable. The Report 
presents a preferred option Masterplan, the early phases of 
development and relevant financial implications. 
 
 

 
 

1. Purpose of report  

 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide the Communities, Environment and Housing 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee with an update on the Porthcawl Waterfront 

Regeneration Programme with particular focus on the recent consultation carried out 

in connection with the proposed Masterplan. This update follows the interim update 

provided to the Committee on 14 July 2025, at which time feedback was sought 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



   

 

regarding the areas where amendment and evolution to the Masterplan could be 

explored. Further updates are provided in connection with the completion of further 

technical assessment, market engagement and design development to ensure the 

Masterplan remains viable and deliverable. The report presents a preferred option 

Masterplan in connection with a proposed outline planning application and early 

phases of development alongside relevant financial implications. The report provides 

an opportunity for the Committee to provide any feedback specific to the Pre 

Application Consultation (PAC) process, noting that in addition to the Committee 

providing feedback individual Councillors are also able to make representations. 

 

 

2. Background 

 

2.1 The Porthcawl Regeneration Programme incorporates a wide range of past, current 

and future planned projects of various scales. Where appropriate projects are subject 

to non-statutory and statutory consultations.   

 

2.2 Whilst comprising various individual projects of varying scales, the Porthcawl 

Waterfront Regeneration Programme collectively seeks to deliver large scale 

transformational regeneration of the Porthcawl Waterfront. As outlined through the 

Local Development Plan (LDP) strategic site allocation, the future development of the 

Porthcawl Waterfront Regeneration Area (PWRA) is proposed to include provision of 

up to circa 1,100 homes, new open space, transport infrastructure, community 

facilities, commercial / leisure development and a new school. Whilst a number of 

individual projects will continue to be delivered by Bridgend County Borough Council 

(BCBC), such as previous projects including the improvements to Eastern 

Promenade and Western Breakwater and Cosy Corner in addition to the current 

Grand Pavilion project, a substantial amount of this large-scale development is 

expected to be delivered by third party developers. Such developers will be appointed 

following compliant public sector disposal and procurement processes that will take 

place in due course. Cabinet and, where appropriate, full Council approval will be 

sought prior to any such procurement or disposal taking place.  

 

2.3 In order to provide further context a summary of the current status of various key 

projects and workstreams is outlined within the table below. 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 14



   

 

Project / Workstream  Summary of Current Status  

Compulsory Purchase Order (CPO) On 19 December 2023 Welsh Ministers 
confirmed The Bridgend County Borough 
Council (Porthcawl Waterfront 
Regeneration) Compulsory Purchase 
Order 2021.  
 
Cabinet approval to make the General 
Vesting Declaration was given in February 
2025.  
 
The General Vesting Declaration (GVD) 
was formally made on 30 July 2025.  
 

Appropriation of land at Griffin Park and 

Sandy Bay 

Legal process now complete following 

requisite Cabinet approval and 

advertisement of intended appropriation.  

Placemaking strategy  Approved by Cabinet and provides 

baseline to inform Masterplan. The 

Masterplan seeks to build on and improve 

on the parameters set out within the 

Placemaking Strategy.   

Open Space Concept Design  Work complete and used to inform 

Masterplan.  

Masterplan  Being developed jointly between BCBC 

and Welsh Government (WG).  

 

Public consultation carried out in February 

2025. Masterplan currently subject to 

evolution and refinement in response to 

consultation.  

 

Updated Masterplan to Pre Application 

Consultation (PAC) which commenced 19 

November 2025. A Public exhibition in the 

Hi Tide was held on 25 November 2025.  

 

Further details in relation to the 

consultation outcomes and preferred 

option that has been progressed to PAC 

Page 15



   

 

are provided under separate heading 

below. 

Eastern Promenade and Western 

Breakwater sea defences 

 

Works completed Summer 2023 

Cosy Corner  Main build completed and all units now 

occupied.  

 

New play equipment installed in April 

2025.  

Food retail store Opened July 2023. 

 

All associated pedestrian and active travel 

improvements including new crossings 

now complete.  

Metro link  Construction completed with the facility 

opened in November 2024. 

Grand Pavilion (GP) Initial strip out / enabling works and paint 

removal now complete. Main works 

contract awarded in May 2025.  

Partnership with Welsh Government 

(WG) 

WG acquired fun fair and beach land in 

March 2023 and Owners Agreement (OA) 

novated / varied across to include WG. 

 

OA extended across full extent of PWRA 

in March 2025 – this agreement has 

secured substantial additional funds for 

both PWRA and GP. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



   

 

3. Current situation / proposal 

 

Porthcawl Waterfront Masterplan: Consultation, Technical Review and Design 

Development   

3.1 A detailed summary of the Masterplan and its principal purpose was provided as part 

of a report presented to the Communities, Environment and Housing Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee on 14 July 2025. This report also provided a detailed breakdown 

of the various stages of work undertaken prior to the public consultation held in 

February 2025 and the outcome of this consultation. The report further included a 

summary of the amendments that have been made to the proposed development 

parameters as part of an iterative process that has seen plans develop and respond 

to public consultation over a number of years. The Committee provided feedback and 

recommendations which have been considered as part of the Masterplan design 

development process. Whilst this report does not intend to reproduce the detailed 

breakdown provided to the Committee in July 2025, a summary of the consultation 

process is provided within subsequent paragraphs below. 

 

3.2 The non-statutory consultation on the Masterplan took place between Monday 13 

January and Friday 28 February 2025.  A full day public exhibition was held in the Hi 

tide from 9am to 7.30pm on 3 February 2025. In total 923 members of the public 

attended. In addition to the 923 attendees at the public exhibition 235 online 

responses were received during the consultation period with a further 73 hard copies 

of the feedback form submitted via the freepost address. A further 108 emails were 

received within the consultation period. There have been a number of additional 

representations made to various council officers and elected members in the 

intervening period since the consultation closed and this report being presented to 

Cabinet.  

 

3.3 The following table provides a summary of the key issues / themes that were most 

commonly raised throughout the public exhibition and within written feedback 

submitted. Where appropriate the table includes commentary in relation to how the 

comments have been addressed and responded to with via either additional technical 

work, clarification or amendments to the Masterplan which are reflected in the 

preferred option Masterplan presented as Appendix 1. 

 

3.4 In addition to the response within the table below, matters that have been subject to 

more frequent representations / enquiries via members are included under 

subheadings below with a response or update provided as appropriate.  

 

Page 17



   

 

Consultation theme and common 
recurring comments  

Summary of additional technical work 
competed, clarification / response and 
design response as appropriate  

Open space, green infrastructure, and 
play facilities 

 

• Positive feedback on the amount of 
open space and distribution of play 
facilities, with acknowledgment that 
prior engagement feedback had been 
considered. 

• Support for a continuous promenade to 
enhance active travel and walkability. 

• Support for integration of the dunes into 
a well-being and nature-focused offer. 

• Expansion of green space through the 
centre of the site was welcomed. 

 

Plans include: 
 
 

• In excess of 2 hectares of new public 
realm along Eastern Promenade. 

• In excess of 1,800 meters of 
segregated / shared cycle routes. 

• 45% additional open space when 
compared to the Placemaking Strategy 

• Further land assembly has been 
completed and additional land 
assembly is being pursued in order to 
achieve the most comprehensive and 
continuous promenade.  

• Several play areas are included within 
the masterplan including Multi Use 
Games Area (MUGA) Local Equipped 
Area for Play (LEAP) and 
Neighborhood Equipped Area for Play 
(NEAP). 

 
 

Flood defences and coastal access 
 

• General support for modernising the 
flood defences and the improved beach 
access they would provide. 

• Recognition of the importance of 
maintaining RNLI access to the beach 
via Mackworth Road. 

 

 
 

• Noted – plans still based on new 
coastal defense revetment. 

• Scope for eastern section following 
land assembly to date and subject to 
further land assembly.  

Housing and density 
 

• Concerns over the proposed 1,100 
homes, particularly regarding high 
densities on Salt Lake. 

• Preference to reduce the number of 
new homes on Sandy Bay.  

 

• Number of homes propose reduced 
from up to 1,100 to up to 980 with 
indicative split across development 
areas as follows: 

Page 18



   

 

• Building heights of up to six storeys on 
Salt Lake were considered excessive 
by many. 

• Less sensitivity to building heights on 
the Coney Beach parcel.  

• 50% affordable housing was generally 
supported, with a preference for shared 
ownership and housing for over-55s, 
but less support for social rent. 

• Strong preference for a mix of homes, 
including family-sized properties. Some 
feedback suggested that elevations 
appeared too high-density, and more 
detached properties would be 
welcomed. 

 

o -Salt Lake: 312 – 364 homes 
(compared to up to 450 at 
consultation) 

o -Coney Beach: 194 – 228 
(compared to 200 at consultation)  

o -Sandy Bay: 330 – 388 (compared 
to up to 450 at consultation) 

• Circa 20% reduction across the site 
with specific reductions as follows: 

• Maximum prevailing building heights of 
5-6 storeys across Salt Lake now 
proposed at 3-4 with the exception of a 
6 storey limit for part of the hotel site on 
Salt Lake South. 

• Sandy Bay heights have been reduced 
from a maximum of 6 storeys to a 
maximum of 3-4 storeys across this 
development area. 

• Please refer to further detail under 
heading ‘Housing’ within this report.  

Connectivity and transport 
 

• Strong support for improved links to the 
town centre. 

• Concerns over access to Sandy Bay 
from New Road, with calls to limit it. 

• General support for a seasonal park 
and ride strategy, utilising edge-of-town 
parking areas. 

• Loss of public parking spaces raised 
concerns, particularly in relation to key 
events. 

 

 
 

• Plans for new Portway crossing being 
driven forward – please refer to details 
under Hillsboro South heading.  

• Vehicle access will be via new access 
road and not directly via New Road, 
Sandy Lane or Rhych Avenue. 

• Parking details provided under 
separate heading below. 

 

Public realm, movement, and     
infrastructure 

 

• Support for removing vehicle access to 
the Eastern Prom, with an emphasis on 
creating a pedestrian-friendly 
environment. 

 
 
 

• Plans retain and build on this principle.  

 
 

Page 19



   

 

• Mixed opinions on architectural styles: 
Some support for contemporary 
designs from younger participants, but 
a general desire to align new buildings 
with the existing vernacular and 
character. 

• Concerns over the location of the skate 
park and pump track, with suggestions 
they may become too sandy and 
should be relocated. 

• Wind effects on residential properties, 
particularly in Sandy Bay, were raised 
as a concern. 

• Queries on the movement of dunes and 
the potential impact of sand on the 
wider Sandy Bay scheme. 

• Drainage limitations and foul network 
capacity were highlighted as issues. 

• Concerns over contamination of the 
ground on both Salt Lake and Sandy 
Bay. 

 

• Reduced building heights, design code 
to be submitted and agreed as part of 
planning application.  

• Pump track has been relocated into the 
centre of the expanded Griffin Park.  

• Further wind analysis has been 
undertaken to inform the preferred 
option masterplan.  

• Masterplan has been refined to 
incorporate measures to mitigate sand 
movement. For example, a revised 
transition area between dunes and 
development is now incorporated.  

• Drainage capacity concerns being 
addressed by a bespoke drainage 
strategy in consultation with Dwr Cymru 
Welsh Water (DCWW). Please see 
details under drainage strategy heading 
within this report.  

• Further technical work has been 
completed and will be made available 
as part of planning application 
documentation.  

 

Leisure, tourism, and community 
facilities 

• Extensive opportunities for seasonal 
events and pop-up uses were widely 
supported, particularly on the Eastern 
Prom. 

• Inclusion of space for a hotel and 
community uses in Salt Lake Harbour 
was welcomed. 

• Queries about the future of holiday 
homes and concerns about the loss of 
space for mobile homes during key 
events. 

• Requirement for a leisure centre was 
raised. 

 
 
 

• Introduction of an additional area for 
seasonal leisure attractions. Please see 
details under heading below.  

• Plans now incorporate outdoor Lido 
and Gym alongside retained Hotel 
opportunity.  

• Motor home site located to the west of 
Sandy Lane.  

 

 

 

Page 20



   

 

• Concerns over the future of Newton 
Primary School, with residents seeking 
clarity on how the land could be 
utilised. 

 

• Land safeguarded for education 
provision south of Newton Primary.  

• Roads and site layout 

• Concerns over the spine road going 
through Monster Park, with suggestions 
to merge it with the Hi Tide access to 
minimise loss of trees and habitat. 

• Support for including parking in a 
podium arrangement. 

 
 

• Road aligned as far south as 
practicable to limit impact on extended 
Griffin Park. 

• Undercroft / below podium parking 
included. 

•      Health  

• Access to health services was a major 
concern, with frustration directed at the 
Health Board. 

• Calls for clarity on how the 
development would accommodate 
healthcare needs 

 

 
 

• Issue is not medical facility size but GP 
availability. Please see details under 
separate heading below. 

 

Environmental considerations 

• Ecological impacts of the development 
were raised, particularly regarding bird 
species. 

• Queries about the potential to fill the 
‘bowl’ with site-won materials. 

• Use of the bowl as a running resource 
was noted, prompting consideration of 
how to integrate this narrative into 
future plans. 

 
 
 

• Extensive ecology survey work 
completed and this has informed the 
masterplan. Further detailed provided 
under separate heading below.  

• Bowl can be filled from onsite material 
as informed by ground modelling work. 

• Walking, running and cycling routes 
incorporated throughout development.  

 
 
 
3.5 In addition to the details outlined above, further details in relation to some of the key 

recurring issues raised are provided under separate headings below.  

 

 

Page 21



   

 

Housing  
 

3.6 Porthcawl Waterfront is allocated to deliver a minimum of 30% affordable housing 

provision (funded entirely through developer contributions). As per the terms of the 

OA, both BCBC and WG aim to increase the policy requirement to a minimum of 35% 

and up to 50% affordable housing with grant support for the additional percentage. 

Affordable housing will include a mix of tenures and be clustered throughout the 

development, while ensuring affordable tenures are not obviously segregated through 

layout, location or design. Tenures will be split between Social Rent (provided by 

Local Authorities and Registered Social Landlords under the WG Rent Standard) and 

Intermediate Housing (where prices or rents are above those of social rent but below 

market housing prices or rents). The split of tenures, types and sizes and affordable 

dwellings will be informed by the latest housing need identified within the Local 

Housing Market Assessment and/or by the Local Housing Authority.  For example, 

Tenures could include Low Cost Home Ownership (LCHO)/ Shared ownership, older 

persons housing, veterans housing, key worker accommodation, affordable rent and 

social rent type products.  It is the intention that a local lettings and local connection 

policy would be developed. For example, any LCHO / Shared Ownership units could 

be offered to local people or those with a local connection first. The same principles 

for apply to other tenures. This policy will be developed and reported back to Cabinet 

separately in due course. 

 

3.7 In addition to local connections / lettings policies, the planning system can result in 

restrictions being imposed on the future use of residential units via the removal of 

permitted development rights. These rights can be removed by either an Article 4 

direction or planning condition. Additionally, restrictions on use could be secured via 

the land disposal and procurement processes.  This suite of potential mechanisms 

for control would allow appropriate restrictions on the use of homes as holiday lets / 

second homes should this be required.  

 

3.8 Whilst full details of the design rationale for the Masterplan layout will be provided as 

part of the suite of documents presented as part of the planning application it is noted 

that a number of consultation comments queried the illustrative Masterplan layout for 

Sandy Bay. In response to this a summary of the design rationale is provide below: 

 

3.9 It is acknowledged that there will be a desire for the public to see detailed design of 

the housing that is not yet possible. There will be many opportunities for further 

engagement moving forward as designs are developed with partners and agreed 

through the planning process. 

 

 

Page 22



   

 

• Contextually Responsive: The proposed development and street pattern for 

Sandy Bay Village takes inspiration from the historic urban grain of Porthcawl, 

where streets are typically perpendicular to the coastal edge (Picton Avenue. 

Esplanade Avenue and Mary Street). Vistas are long, framed by a rhythm of 

repeating townhouses. The Masterplan layout for Sandy Bay avoids the 

characterless cul-de-sacs and dead-end streets typical of suburban estates, 

instead promoting a permeable, legible, and walkable neighbourhood 

structure. 

 

• Democratic Appreciation: The perpendicular street orientation, combined with 

projecting bays and balconies, supports a democratic appreciation of the 

surrounding landscape. This arrangement allows the majority of residents to 

enjoy positive views towards the dunes or sea to the south and the hills to the 

north, reinforcing a shared connection to the natural setting. 

 

• Established and Successful Approach: The Accordia development in 

Cambridge provides a proven precedent, demonstrating how a grid-based 

structure can deliver a denser yet characterful neighbourhood whilst adhering 

to lower building heights and maintaining visual permeability. Residents at 

Accordia report a strong sense of community, supported by shared 

courtyards, gardens, and play spaces that encourage informal social 

interaction. 

 

• Efficient Form of Design: A grid layout enables appropriate density without a 

sense of overcrowding and enables lower building heights to be maintained. 

Compact plots and reduced road space enhance the ratio of built form to 

public realm, allowing greater emphasis on high-quality landscaping, mature 

trees, and pedestrian-friendly streetscapes.  

 

• Variety Within Order: While the structure is orderly and legible, architectural 

variety can be achieved through changes in materials, façade treatment, and 

courtyard typologies. This balance between consistency and individuality 

creates visual richness and a distinctive local character within a coherent 

framework. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 23



   

 

Health  

 

3.10 A number of concerns have been raised in connection with GP capacity within the 

town. In response to this it is pertinent to note Cwm Taf Morgannwg University Health 

Board (CTMUHB) were regularly consulted throughout Replacement LDP preparation 

and provided with housing delivery forecasts in relation to the Porthcawl Waterfront 

Allocation.  

 

3.11 In their response to the Replacement LDP, CTMUHB raised no concerns with respect 

to the proposed development across Porthcawl Waterfront and specific reference was 

made to the fact that South Road Surgery relocated into the new medical centre in 

Porthcawl in February 2019. 

 

3.12 Whilst it is fully acknowledged that the development will result in additional demand, 

this demand is capable of being met by the existing medical centre in terms of its 

physical size, subject to CTMUHB drawing down additional GP places and appointing 

this additional staffing resource. Dialogue will continue with the CTMUHB as the 

Replacement LDP’s Housing Trajectory is updated and as the development 

progresses. This will ensure they are kept abreast of phasing and delivery timescales 

which can then inform strategic planning, including the timings for the drawdown of 

extra provision. 

 

 

Technical Assessment  

3.13 As part of the design development process, a wider range of technical assessments  

have been completed in order to inform the preferred option Masterplan and to ensure 

that it remains viable and deliverable. This work has included the following:  

• Preparation of a drainage strategy  

• Development levels model 

• Earthworks strategy  

• Viability appraisals  

• Flood modelling 

• Traffic and parking surveys  

• Transport modelling  

• Ecology surveys 

• Tree surveys  

Page 24



   

 

• Heritage assessment  

• Environmental Impact Assessment  

 

3.14 Full copies of the relevant reports have been made available as part of the Pre 

Application Consultation (PAC) process which commenced on 19 November 2025. 

Given there have been substantial local concerns in connection with drainage, 

parking and transport a summary of the work is included below.  

Drainage  

3.15 As part of the design development process the Council and WG have commissioned 

Civil Engineers to prepare a drainage strategy that provides a suitable solution for the 

development and wider town. As part of this work BCBC and WG have engaged with 

Dwr Cymru Welsh Water (DCWW) who will be a statutory consultee for any future 

planning applications.  Given the existing local sewer network is running at capacity 

the development will use a new, independent foul drainage system with no 

connections to nearby existing sewers. A single, safe discharge point into the wider 

sewer network is being identified in close conjunction with DCWW through 

investigation, modelling and design. The monitoring, operation, maintenance and 

improvement of the existing sewerage infrastructure that lies outside the development 

area remains the responsibility of DCWW. 

 

3.16 No surface water runoff (rain water) will connect to the development’s new foul 

drainage system and any existing surface water currently reaching the foul and 

combined drainage system from within the development area will cease and be 

drained by a new sustainable drainage system. This approach will act to reduce the 

overall burden on the local foul drainage network compared to the current 

arrangements in place.  

 

Transport  and Highways  

 

3.17 An independent transport planning consultancy has been commissioned to work 

closely with the BCBC / WG project team and BCBC’s Highways Development 

Control officers to assess the transport implications of the Masterplan proposals. A 

comprehensive scope of survey, modelling and design work has been agreed to 

ensure the proposed development can be accommodated on the local and strategic 

road network without unacceptable impact. The consultants are in the process of 

producing a detailed Transport Assessment (TA) to accompany the planning 

application submission, providing the formal evidence base for consideration by the 

Local Planning Authority (LPA). A copy of this TA will be made available as part of 

the PAC process and again as part of the formal planning application process.  

Page 25



   

 

3.18 The assessment is informed by an extensive programme of data collection, including 

automatic traffic counts (ATCs), manual classified turning counts, and detailed car 

park accumulation surveys undertaken across key locations in Porthcawl. The 2025 

survey programme supplements traffic and parking data collected over recent years, 

ensuring a robust and representative multi-year evidence base. The surveys have 

been designed to capture conditions during a neutral pre-summer period, the summer 

peak, and post-summer traffic, allowing the analysis to reflect typical baseline activity 

as well as understanding the highest seasonal demand.  

 

3.19 Surveys covered Salt Lake, Hillsboro North and South, and Sandy Bay car parks 

between 07:00 and 19:00 over six weekends (plus the August Bank Holiday), 

supplemented by surveys during the Elvis Festival period. ATCs were undertaken 

along the A4106, A4229, The Portway, and New Road, while manual junction counts 

were completed at eleven key junctions across the town and approaches to capture 

weekday peak period conditions. In addition, data from the South East Wales 

Transport Model (SEWTM) has been utilised to understand traffic movements at a 

further five junctions between Porthcawl, Bridgend, Pyle, and the M4 corridor. 

 

3.20 At the time of this report, the transport modelling work is ongoing and will inform the 

final TA submitted as part of the planning application. At this stage, an appropriate 

form of access to the site has been identified, and the ongoing analysis is being used 

to determine where targeted highway mitigation measures may be required to create 

additional network capacity and improve conditions for walking, cycling and public 

transport. Where the assessment identifies a need, proportionate highway, active 

travel and public transport enhancements will be proposed to ensure the development 

supports sustainable travel and operates acceptably within the surrounding transport 

network. 

 

Parking 

 

3.21 Both BCBC and WG have policies and statutory responsibilities to promote Active 

Travel and enable a modal shift that transitions away from use of private vehicles. 

However, because the PWRA is a key visitor destination a sustainable parking 

solution is required. 

 

3.22 To respond to this, the preferred option Masterplan has identified the opportunity to 

accommodate up to 600 public car parking spaces in the Waterfront area for visitors. 

Appropriate private parking will be provided for all residential dwellings in addition to 

this public provision. The proposed public provision includes the following:  

 

Page 26



   

 

• Approximately 400 publicly accessible spaces spread between Hillsboro car park 

and Salt Lake Central (Salt Like Central spaces under podium), which would be 

configured to a more efficient layout. This would not require a multi-storey. 

 • Approximately 200 spaces in the Coney Beach area. 

 

To help inform a suitable visitor parking provision for the Masterplan four years of 

survey data has been collected for the use of Hillsboro North, Hillsboro South, Salt 

Lake, and Sandy Lane car parks. The survey findings are summarised below and 

suggest that the parking approach in the Masterplan is proportionate to the typical 

demand:  

 

• A maximum summertime weekday peak of circa 500 cars parked at any time across 

the 4 car parks surveyed.  

• An average summertime peak (any day) of circa 700 cars parked at any time across 

the 4 car parks surveyed. 

 • A maximum peak of circa 1300 cars parked at any one time across the 4 car parks 

surveyed with this peak arising as a result of both the Porthcawl 10k and Bonfire night 

peak parking demands. 

 

3.23 Based on these findings the number of replacement parking spaces included in the 

Masterplan can accommodate for all of the average weekday peak identified in the 

survey, and 85% of the any day peak. In addition to dedicated off street parking 

provision proposed it is acknowledged that on street parking will continue to play a 

role and be available for use by residents and visitors alike (in areas where resident 

parking restrictions continue to not apply). In this respect it should be acknowledged 

that at some point as part of the overall phasing and delivery the on-street provision 

along Eastern Promenade will be replaced with an expansive area of new public 

realm. Whilst there are no marked bays it is acknowledged that the on-street parking 

in this area provides an opportunity for circa 100-120 vehicles to park (exact capacity 

fluctuates based on vehicle sizes and parking behaviour). The free nature of this 

parking means that this provision is often first to reach capacity on any given day as 

a combination of visitors and locals take advantage of the fact that no payment is 

required and no time limit applies. The loss of this on street provision and any 

displacement will need to be considered as part of the overall phasing strategy and 

the point in time at which this occurs will be a relevant consideration insofar as to 

what extent any modal shift has occurred, with this able to be evidenced by ongoing 

survey work. The potential introduction of resident only parking zones in the streets 

surrounding the PWRA and Town Centre may also be a relevant consideration, 

however this would need to be subject to future Cabinet consideration and statutory 

consultations as appropriate.  

 

Page 27



   

 

3.24 In addition to the public parking provision included in the Masterplan, work is well 

advanced on securing a site for seasonal overflow parking at the edge of the town. 

An edge of town overflow facility would provide for the remaining additional parking 

demands for the average any-day peak and the peaks associated with events and 

bank holidays. The gradual modal shift that results in fewer people using private 

vehicles is also an important consideration, and the delivery of the metro link bus 

station is expected to help enable this transition for Porthcawl with more people 

accessing the town via bus.  

Ecology  

3.25 Extensive ecology survey work has been carried out both prior to and since the 

February 2025 consultation. This work has included surveys of habitats, protected 

species, bats (surveys of buildings and trees, activity surveys and remote surveys), 

reptiles, great crested newts, breeding birds, wintering birds and invertebrates. The 

findings of these surveys have informed the preferred option Masterplan. The survey 

results will also inform appropriate mitigation and compensation measures as part of 

the planning application process.  

 

Expression of Interest /Marketing 

 

3.26 Throughout the Spring and Summer of 2025 Savills and EJ Hales were instructed by 

the Council and WG to undertake a market engagement exercise to ensure the 

commercial and leisure elements of the Masterplan are well grounded in commercial 

reality and deliverable. In summary the exercise showed that there are various parties 

interested in commercial and leisure opportunities within the PWRA and the overall 

scale and mix of space shown within the Masterplan would align with the market 

demand. Whilst a number of positive responses were received it should be noted that 

the overall response rate was not particularly high relative to the unique nature of the 

PWRA and potential opportunities within (14 responses were received when 

considering both the initial survey period and subsequent expressions of interest). 

This is in part reflective of the stage at which the plans are at (planning consent has 

not yet been granted) but also does suggest that there is a limit to the scale of 

commercial opportunities within the PWRA that can be accommodated by the market 

and therefore a balanced and flexible approach should be taken to the nature and 

scale of commercial / leisure opportunities.   

 

3.27 Notwithstanding the modest response rate it is noteworthy that as part of this process 

and follow up discussion specific interest has been expressed by operators with an 

interest in seasonal attractions. The preferred option Masterplan has been directly 

informed by this market engagement alongside the consultation and technical review.  

 

Page 28



   

 

Technical Review Summary  

 

3.28 The aforementioned technical matters have directly influenced the preferred option 

Masterplan which is subject to the ongoing PAC process. This approach ensures the 

Masterplan will provide a sound framework for development which is influenced by 

the findings of a wide suite of technical assessment that has been carried out. It will 

be incumbent on both the Local Planning Authority and Statutory Consultees to 

review and assess this technical evidence as part of the future planning application 

process. Similarly, the public have access to the full suite of technical evidence as 

part of the PAC process and will have access to any further documentation submitted 

as part of the subsequent planning application case file. The public are able to make 

representations on the full suite of documentation as part of both the current PAC and 

future planning application stage statutory consultation process.  

Preferred Option Masterplan  
 
3.29 The preferred option Masterplan provided as Appendix 1 has been produced 

following  careful consideration of the consultation responses alongside the 

completion of further market engagement, technical work and ongoing land 

acquisition / assembly work as outlined above. The amendments also respond to the 

direction and recommendations provided by the Communities, Environment and 

Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 14 July 2025. When considering the 

nature and scale of amendments to the plan due regard has been paid to the need 

for the Masterplan to remain viable, deliverable and policy compliant. Alongside this 

considerable care and effort has been given to ensure that the maximum level of 

enhancement to the plan can be achieved, and that the significant ambition of the 

Council and aspirations of the public are captured within the plan. In this respect the 

Masterplan is considered to represent a balanced framework that can be used to 

enhance Porthcawl as a place for residents and visitors alike. The preferred option 

Masterplan includes substantial leisure opportunities that retain a degree of flexibility 

that will allow Porthcawl to evolve and adapt as it is enjoyed by both current and future 

generations.  

 

3.30 The Masterplan provided should be read in conjunction with the building height 

parameter plan provided as Appendix 2. Collectively these documents capture the 

ambition of the Council and WG and its commitment to setting strong parameters that 

will act to guide the development of individual sites as the development is brought 

forward in a phased and coordinated manner. Given the scale of the regeneration 

opportunity and timescales for phased delivery, the Masterplan retains flexibility and 

includes leisure use on land east of Aldi Supermarket.   

 

Page 29



   

 

3.31 In summary, the Masterplan has been subject to substantial amendments since the 

consultation stage plan in February 2025. Significant changes made include the 

following:  

• The addition an outdoor lido and associated gym provision on Salt Lake south.  

• Introduction of additional leisure provision with a multifunctional use opportunity on 

site east of Aldi.  

• Reduction in housing numbers from circa 1,100 to up to 980 homes  

• Reduction in building heights with a circa 20% reduction across the board with 

specific reductions as follows: 

o Maximum prevailing building heights of 5-6 storeys across Salt Lake now 

proposed at 3-4 with the exception of a 6 storey limit for the hotel site on Salt 

Lake 

o Sandy Bay heights have been reduced from a maximum of 6 storeys to a 

maximum of 3-4 storeys across this development area. 

• Review and refinement of open spaces and uses within - ensuring the right balance 

between, quality, scale, character usability, connectivity and quantity of spaces.  

 

3.32 A more detailed summary of each of the above amendments is provided under 

separate headings below.  

 

Salt lake South Lido / Gym and Hotel  

3.33 The preferred option Masterplan builds on the consultation stage parameters for the 

Salt Lake South Leisure site and responds directly to the feedback from the public. 

As can be seen from the Masterplan provided as Appendix 1 the site now 

accommodates a 25m eight lane outdoor lido together with associated gym facilities. 

The site also retains the ability to deliver commercial units alongside flexible 

community space and a hotel with potential for circa 60 beds. Together these 

elements have the potential to create a landmark development that acts as a 

significant attractor at a local, regional and potentially national level. These proposals 

reflect the aspiration of BCBC and commitment to ensuring the PWRA results in the 

maximum benefits for residents and visitors. 

 

Site for Seasonal Attractions  

 

3.34 Whilst the proposed public realm adjoining eastern promenade has substantial 

capacity for a range of seasonal attractions and events this space is not likely to be 

delivered as one of the earliest phases.  The preferred option Masterplan also 

identifies the site east of Aldi as being capable of accommodating seasonal 

attractions on a meanwhile basis. The use of the land for this purpose would provide 

an opportunity for ongoing summertime fun fair style attractions but also provide a 

platform for additional seasonal offerings at other times throughout the year. For 

Page 30



   

 

example, a winter wonderland style offer may be possible subject to market interest. 

Meanwhile uses are an important part of large-scale regeneration and provide an 

opportunity to ensure land is used as efficiently as possible and spaces remain 

activated and vibrant whilst development is brought forward in a phased manner.  

 

3.35 Within this context it would not be appropriate to suggest a time limit for the 

meanwhile use but given the wider PWRA project will take several years to be 

delivered in full it is possible that the site can be used on a meanwhile basis for a 

considerable period of time. The relative success of the site can determine future 

plans and timescales. As an initial step it is proposed to market an opportunity for a 

seasonal attraction to run from the site via a licence within the summer of 2026. 

Further detail in relation to the initial temporary opportunity is provide under separated 

heading below.  

 

Reduction in unit numbers  

 

3.36 As part of the suite of amendments presented within the preferred option Masterplan 

the overall number of homes proposed has now reduced to circa 980. This is split 

across the 3 main development areas as follows: 

 

Development 

Area  

Consultation Stage Housing 

Numbers  

Revised Draft 

Masterplan Housing 

Numbers  

Salt Lake 450 312 – 364 

Coney Beach  200 194 – 228 

Sandy Bay 450 330 – 388 

Total  1100 Up to 980  

 

Reduction in building heights  

 

The plan provided as Appendix 2 shows the proposed maximum building heights 

across the PWRA and the change in building heights compared to the consultation 

stage is shown by a ‘-‘ or ‘+’ alongside a number representing the extent of the 

change. In summary, significant reductions have been made across the board with 

maximum prevailing building heights of 5-6 storeys across Salt Lake now proposed 

at 3-4 with the exception of a 6-storey limit for the hotel site on Salt Lake south.  

Similarly, Sandy Bay heights have been reduced from a maximum of 6 storeys to a 

maximum of 3-4 storeys across this development area. A small area of 5-6 storeys is 

Page 31



   

 

shown within the Coney Beach development parcel but this is strategically positioned 

to provide an opportunity for a high-quality landmark building and is located in an 

area that is considered appropriate for such scale (subject to high quality design). All 

of the heights stated are maximums and it will be incumbent on the LPA to consider 

these heights as part of the planning application process. 

 
Review and refinement of open spaces  

 

Notwithstanding the significant reduction in building heights the Masterplan has 

preserved the same scale and open space that was presented at consultation stage. 

Further review of the shape and character of spaces has been undertaken to ensure 

they respond to several factors including ecological considerations, the wider 

Masterplan layout, intended use within each space and overall connectivity. The 

overall scale of open space proposed is significant with the proposed extension of 

Griffin Park a prime example of this as the park would treble in size via the proposed 

extension eastward.  Overall, there has been a 45% increase in the overall area of 

open space proposed when compared to the Placemaking Strategy. Members will 

recall that the Placemaking Strategy consultation and subsequent amendment 

process itself resulted in a substantial increase in open pace compared to previous 

plans so the further increase is particularly noteworthy in this context.  

 

3.37 The preferred option Masterplan will be subject to further consultation at PAC stage. 

Further detail regarding the anticipated next steps and headline programme is 

included under separate heading below.  

 

Anticipated next steps and headline programme  

 

3.38 The PWRA project is at a pivotal stage. The preferred option Masterplan has been 

finalised and PAC will commence followed by the submission of an outline planning 

application. Subject to the outcome of any planning application, it is anticipated that 

the first phase of development will be marketed during the summer of 2026 with 

construction to commence onsite following sale to a housebuilder and reserved 

matters approval being obtained. Throughout this period there are various other 

workstreams and milestones as outlined within the headline programme below. This 

programme will continue to be developed in partnership with WG and refined over 

the coming months. As such the programme remains dynamic in nature so whilst 

headline dates are identified these may be subject to change.   

 

 

 

 

Page 32



   

 

Key Date  Milestone  

 
19 November 2025 

Commencement of Pre Application 

Consultation (PAC) 

December 2025 – January 2025 Marketing of temporary fun fair site on a 

1 year licence  

November 2025 – January 2025  Hillsboro South Public Realm Planning 

Application submission and 

determination  

January 2026 Outline Planning Application Submission 

Submission of prior notification 

application for demolition of fun fair site 

buildings  

January 2026 - April 2026 Lido and gym design development  

February 2026  Closure of Hillsboro South Car Park and 

Commencement of public realm works  

March 2026 WG take Vacant Possession of the 

cleared funfair site  

March 2026 – August 2026 Pre demolition intrusive surveys within 

fun fair site  

May 2026 Use of temporary seasonal attraction 

commences 

June 2026  Anticipated Planning application 

determination  

June 2026 - October 2026 Procurement of demolition contractor 

and award of contract subject to planning 

/ prior notification outcome 

July 2026  Marketing of first phase for disposal  

November 2026 Marketing of meanwhile use fun fair / 

leisure site opportunity  

November 2026 – March 2027  Estimated duration of fun fair site 

building demolition (subject to outcome 

Page 33



   

 

of planning application/ prior notification 

of demolition application) 

November 2026 - March 2027  Preferred bidder (following site 

marketing) to obtain reserved matters 

approval) 

March 2027 Onwards  Construction of first phase of 

development commences  

 

3.39 As can be seen above the next substantial capital project planned is the public realm 

works at Hillsboro South. This area forms a core part of the Masterplan and will act 

to link both the Metrolink and wider PWRA with the TC. It is also planned to undertake 

marketing of the leisure site adjoining Aldi prior to the end of 2025 in order to facilitate 

initial seasonal provision for the summer of 2026. Further details in relation to both 

these projects are provided under separate headings below. In order to support 

ongoing activity and vibrancy along the seafront prior to redevelopment commencing 

officers are also working with WG to facilitate an opportunity for kiosks on the Coney 

Beach frontage to continue trading for a temporary period prior to redevelopment of 

this area.   

 

Hillsboro South Public Realm and Portway Crossing 

 

3.40 The public realm at Hillsboro south has been a longstanding commitment by the 

Council having featured strongly in both the PWRA and Town Centre placemaking 

strategies in addition to the PWRA open space concept design.  The public realm is 

also a key element of the open space strategy as part of the preferred option 

Masterplan presented as part of this report. All of these overarching strategies and 

plans have been subject to extensive public consultation and the detailed plans will 

be subject to further consultation as part of the panning application process. The site 

is located at a pivotal junction in PWRA but more importantly, plays a key role in 

integrating the wider PWRA with the town centre. Copies of the proposed site plan 

and CGIs are provided as Appendix 3 

 

3.41 The scheme was awarded WG Transforming Towns (TT) grant funding to support the 

development phase of the project, having been designed through concept to planning 

stage with a planning application having been submitted on 17 October 2025.  At the 

time of writing this report the planning application is pending validation. The overall 

projected cost of the scheme stands at circa £1.2m and will deliver a toucan crossing 

to provide town centre access to the Metrolink alongside a high-quality area of public 

realm. In October 2025 the scheme was awarded 50% match grant funding by WG 

Page 34



   

 

via the TT programme. With an overall projected cost of £1.2 million this equates to 

£600,000 WG funding and a £600,000 BCBC match. The BCBC match can be funded 

via the existing capital allocation that is in place for infrastructure in connection with 

regeneration across the PWRA.  

 

3.42 In parallel to the planning application the process to procure a contractor will be 

progressed so a preferred bidder can be identified and a contract let should the 

planning application be met with a positive decision from the LPA. In the event 

planning is granted within 8 weeks of the application submission a contract can be let 

and work could commence in January 2026 with an anticipated overall works duration 

of less than 12 months. In order to facilitate the work, Hillsboro South Car Park will 

be required to close.  As part of the  delivery of the works the shipping container retail 

units will be temporarily relocated within the site as appropriate with the project having 

been designed to allow for these to remain within the site on a more meanwhile basis.  

 

Marketing of Seasonal Leisure opportunity  

 

3.43 In December 2025 it is planned to commence marketing of an initial opportunity for a 

licence to operate a temporary fun fair style attraction on land shown in red on 

Appendix 4.  

 

3.44 Subject to the success of this initial temporary offer it is anticipated that the longer 

term meanwhile opportunity can be progressed and marketed as appropriate from 

November 2026 onwards. As such, subject to timescales the initial temporary 

seasonal offer may operate across both the Summer of 2026 and 2027 with the 

meanwhile provision to commence from 2027 onwards as this would provide time to 

secure any necessary planning consent and prepare the site and complete any 

additional marketing / procurement exercise as appropriate.  

4.  Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 

 

4.1  An initial Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) screening has identified that there would 

be no negative impact on those with one or more of the protected characteristics, on 

socio-economic disadvantage or the use of the Welsh Language. It is therefore not 

necessary to carry out a full Equality Impact assessment on this proposal.  

 

4. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 

5.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 Assessment based on the 5 

ways of working has been considered and there are no significant or unacceptable 

impacts upon the achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.  

Page 35



   

 

 

• Long term - The Porthcawl Waterfront Regeneration scheme is a strategic 

development scheme which has the potential to add vibrancy to the locality through 

the provision of new housing, leisure and tourism opportunities, as well as retail and 

commercial developments; set within appropriate open space, parking and public 

realm. 

• Prevention – the current Waterfront sites are largely unoccupied and under-utilised 

and detract from the attractiveness of the area. 

• Integration – the Waterfront development will integrate with and access the existing 

town centre, sea front and leisure developments.  

• Collaboration – the Council will continue to collaborate with residents, visitors and 

end users of this project to ensure successful and sustainable development and 

outcomes. 

• Involvement – ongoing engagement with the community will be an important facet of 

this project. 

 
6. Climate Change and Nature Implications  
 
6.1 Taking action to support decarbonisation is critically important in order to protect and 

sustain the environment over the long term. The delivery of regeneration of a 
previously developed PWRA site within existing settlement boundaries represents an 
inherently sustainable form of development which results in reduced carbon 
emissions compared to the development of out of settlement greenfield land.  

 
6.2  From a nature perspective the PWRA Masterplan has been informed by extensive 

ecology survey work. The findings of these surveys have informed the preferred 
option masterplan. The survey results will also inform appropriate mitigation and 
compensation measures as part of the planning application process 

 
 
7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications arising from this 

report.  
 
 
8. Financial implications 

 

8.1  The proposed Hillsboro South public realm and Portway crossing scheme is to be 

funded via a combination of WG TT funding and match via the PWRA infrastructure 

fund (capital secured via the sale of the Aldi supermarket site) which currently has a 

balance of £2.827m. The deployment of £600,000 from the PWRA infrastructure fund 

aligns with the existing capital allocation made by Council on 21 November 2018 

Page 36



   

 

which includes specific reference to new crossing points on the Portway, physical 

improvements in key areas and pedestrian links to the Town Centre. As such the 

deployment of BCBC capital to support the match funding for this project remains 

fully in line with the existing allocation, and therefore does not require further express 

Cabinet or Council approval. As outlined within preceding sections of the report the 

project is an important part of the wider plans across the PWRA and its delivery as 

an early phase will make a significant positive impact. The remaining £2.227 million 

can be used to support a wide range of projects that are identified within the preferred 

option Masterplan. It should be acknowledged that some of these projects will have 

overall capital costs far in excess of the £2.227 million that will remain following 

delivery of the Hillsboro South scheme. In these instances, whilst the allocation could 

not support the full costs it could be used as a contribution towards costs with the 

balance to be funded by other means which may include grant funding or developer 

contributions.  

  

8.2 In addition to the projects outlined within the preceding paragraphs it is evident that 

the Masterplan includes a significant number of large scale individual and interlinked 

development projects. For clarity its preparation and publication does not constitute 

approval of any additional capital or revenue expenditure and therefore other than 

those matters noted above there are no further direct financial implications arising for 

BCBC from this report. All financial considerations will need to be considered on a 

project-by-project basis and further reports will be taken to Cabinet and/or Council as 

appropriate. Given the nature and scale of projects that form part of the overall 

regeneration programme it is important to recognise that their delivery will be reliant 

on a combination of external grant funding and the Council’s capital funding.  

 

9. Recommendations 
 
9.1      It is recommended that the Committee note and provide feedback on the following:  

 

• The important background work and governance to this programme. 
 

• The evolution of the Masterplan in relation to the significant consultation and previous 

feedback from the Committee and the key areas where amendments have been 

made.  
 

• Note the forward programme, and the opportunity for further engagement and 

information relating to the regeneration.  
 

• Provide any feedback specific to the PAC process, noting that in addition to the 

Committee providing feedback individual Councillors are able to make 

representations  

Page 37



   

 

Background Documents:  

 

None 

Page 38



Appendix 1

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3

P
age 43



P
age 44



P
age 45



P
age 46



El Sub Sta

Play Area

PC

Sports Pavilion

Shelter
Griffin Park

Bowling Green

TCB

8

4
1

5

PH

Griffin

Park

Tennis Courts

1820
22

Amb Sta

23

28

2

1

3

2
10

13

29

26

24

F

Sta

Tennis

7.9m

7.9m

Court

8.8m

Car Park

El Sub Sta

Play Area

PC

Sports Pavilion

Shelter
Griffin Park

Bowling Green

18

Tennis

20

TCB

8

22

Amb Sta

23

28

4

2

1

3

F

7.9m

7.9m

Sta

2
10

1
Court

5

13

29

26

24

PH

8.8m

Car Park

Griffin

Park

Tennis Courts

Scale: 1: 1250 

Date: 10/07/2025    

Janine Nightingale 
Corporate Director - Communities 
Directorate 

Bridgend County Borough Council, 
Civic Offices, 
Angel Street, 
Bridgend, 
CF31 4WB 

©Crown Copyright and database right 2025. Ordnance Survey AC0000851951. Use of this data is 
subject to terms and conditions.
©Hawlfraint a hawliau cronfa ddata'r Goron 2025. Rhif Trwydded yr Arolwg Ordnans AC0000851951. 
Mae defnydd o’r data hwn yn ddarostyngedig i delerau ac amodau.

Aerial Imagery: Cities Revealed aerial photography copyright The GeoInformation Group 2011. 
Copyright Getmapping plc. 

Countryside Council for Wales, ©Crown Copyright and database right 2011. 
Ordnance Survey 100018813. 

Forestry Commission, ©Crown Copyright and database right 2011. Ordnance Survey 100025498.

Salt Lake Car Park
Temp Fun Fair      

Appendix 4

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

  
Meeting of:  

 
COMMUNITY, ENVIRONMENT AND HOUSING 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

 
Date of Meeting:  

 
8 DECEMBER 2025 

 

 
Report Title:  

 
FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME UPDATE  

 

 
Report Owner: 
Responsible Chief 
Officer / Cabinet 
Member 

 
CHIEF OFFICER – LEGAL & REGULATORY SERVICES, HR 

& ELECTORAL 
 

 
Responsible 
Officer:  

 
MERYL LAWRENCE 

SENIOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES OFFICER – SCRUTINY 
 

Policy Framework 
and Procedure 
Rules:  

The work of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees relates to 
the review and development of plans, policy or strategy that 
form part of the Council’s Policy Framework and 
consideration of plans, policy or strategy relating to the 
power to promote or improve economic, social or 
environmental wellbeing in the County Borough of 
Bridgend.  

Executive 
Summary:  
 

The Council’s Constitution requires each Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to develop and implement a Forward 
Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
The Committee is asked to consider and agree its Forward 
Work Programme, identify any specific information it 
wishes to be included in and any invitees they wish to 
attend for the reports for the next two Committee meetings, 
identify any further items for consideration on the Forward 
Work Programme having regard to the criteria set out in the 
report, and consider the Recommendations Monitoring 
Action Sheet for this Committee. 

 
1. Purpose of Report  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to: 

 
a) Present the Committee with the Forward Work Programme attached as 

(Appendix A) for consideration and approval; 
 

b) Request any specific information the Committee identifies to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Request the Committee to identify whether there are presently any further items 
for consideration on the Forward Work Programme having regard to the 
selection criteria in paragraph 3.5 of this report; 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



 

d) Present the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet (Appendix B) to track 
responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at previous meetings; 

 

e) Advise that the Committee’s Forward Work Programme as approved will be 
reported to the next meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(COSC) for information, together with those from the other Overview and 
Scrutiny Committees, following their consideration in this cycle of Committee 
meetings. 

 

2. Background  
 
2.1 The Council’s Constitution requires each Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 

develop and implement a Forward Work Programme for the Committee. 
 
2.2  It also provides for the Committee to propose items for the Forward Work 

Programme having regard for the Council’s Corporate Priorities and Risk 
Management framework. Where a matter for consideration by an Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee also falls within the remit of one or more other Committees, the 
decision as to which Committee will consider it will be resolved by the respective 
Chairs or, if they fail to agree, the Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 
 Best Practice / Guidance 
 
2.3 The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny’s (CfGS) Good Scrutiny Guide recognises 

the importance of the Forward Work Programme. In order to ‘lead and own the 
process’, it states that Councillors should have ownership of their Committee’s work 
programme, and be involved in developing, monitoring and evaluating it. The Good 
Scrutiny Guide also states that, in order to make an impact, the scrutiny workload 
should be coordinated and integrated into corporate processes, to ensure that it 
contributes to the delivery of corporate objectives, and that work can be undertaken 
in a timely and well-planned manner.  

 
2.4 Forward Work Programmes need to be manageable to maximize the effective use 

of the limited time and resources of Scrutiny Committees.  It is not possible to 
include every topic proposed.  Successful Scrutiny is about looking at the right topic 
in the right way and Members need to be selective, while also being able to 
demonstrate clear arguments for including or excluding topics.  

 
2.5    The CfGS’s guide to effective work programming ‘A Cunning Plan?’ makes the 

following reference to the importance of good work programming: 
 

‘Effective work programming is the bedrock of an effective scrutiny function. 
Done well it can help lay the foundations for targeted, incisive and timely 
work on issues of local importance, where scrutiny can add value. Done 
badly, scrutiny can end up wasting time and resources on issues where the 
impact of any work done is likely to be minimal.’ 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 50



 

3. Current situation / proposal  
 
3.1 Following the approval of the schedule of Scrutiny Committee meeting dates at the 

Annual Meeting of Council on 14 May 2025, the standing statutory reports to 
Scrutiny Committees of: the Corporate Plan, the Medium Term Financial Strategy 
(MTFS) and Budget, Performance and Budget Monitoring, etc. have been mapped 
to the appropriate timely meeting dates into a Forward Work Programme. 

 
3.2  The Forward Work Programmes for each Scrutiny Committee have been prepared 

using a number of difference sources, including:  
 

• Corporate Risk Assessment;  

• Directorate Business Plans; 

• Previous Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Programme report topics / minutes; 

• Committee / Member proposed topics; 

• Policy Framework; 

• Cabinet Work Programme; 

• Discussions with Corporate Directors; 

• Performance Team regarding the timing of performance information.  
 

3.3 There are items where there is a statutory duty for Policy Framework documents to 
be considered by Scrutiny, e.g., the MTFS including draft budget proposals 
scheduled for consideration in January 2026, following which COSC will make 
conclusions and recommendations in a report on the overall strategic overview of 
Cabinet’s draft Budget proposals to the meeting of Cabinet in February 2026. 
 

3.4  An effective Forward Work Programme will identify the issues that the Committee 
wishes to focus on during the year and provide a clear plan.  However, at each 
meeting the Committee will have an opportunity to review this as the Forward Work 
Programme Update will be a standing item on the Agenda, detailing which items are 
scheduled for future meetings and be requested to clarify any information to be 
included in reports and the list of invitees.  The Forward Work Programme will 
remain flexible and will be reported to each COSC meeting for information. 

 
 Identification of Further Items 
 
3.5 The Committee are reminded that the Scrutiny selection criteria used by Scrutiny 

Committee Members to consider, select and prioritise items emphasises the need to 
consider issues such as impact, risk, performance, budget and community 
perception when identifying topics for investigation to maximise the impact scrutiny 
can have on a topic and the outcomes for people. The criteria which can help the 
Committee come to a decision on whether to include a referred topic, are set out 
below:  

 
 Recommended Criteria for Selecting Scrutiny Topics: 
 
 PUBLIC INTEREST:  The concerns of local people should influence the issues 

chosen for scrutiny;  
 
 ABILITY TO CHANGE:  Priority should be given to issues that the Committee 

can realistically influence, and add value to;  
 

Page 51



 

 PERFORMANCE:  Priority should be given to the areas in which the Council 
is not performing well;  

 
 EXTENT:  Priority should be given to issues that are relevant to all 

or large parts of the County Borough, or a large number 
of the Authority’s service users or its population; 

 
 REPLICATION:  Work programmes must take account of what else is 

happening in the areas being considered to avoid 
duplication or wasted effort.  

 

 Reasons to Reject Scrutiny Topics: 
 

 • The issue is already being addressed / being examined elsewhere and change is   
              imminent.  

 • The topic would be better addressed elsewhere (and can be referred there).  

 • Scrutiny involvement would have limited / no impact upon outcomes. 

 • The topic may be sub-judice or prejudicial. 

 • The topic is too broad to make a review realistic and needs refining / scoping. 

 • New legislation or guidance relating to the topic is expected within the next year.  

 • The topic area is currently subject to inspection or has recently undergone  
    substantial change / reconfiguration. 
 

Corporate Parenting 
 

3.6 Corporate Parenting is the term used to describe the responsibility of a local 
authority towards care experienced children and young people. This is a legal 
responsibility given to local authorities by the Children Act 1989 and the Children 
Act 2004. The role of the Corporate Parent is to seek for children in public care the 
outcomes every good parent would want for their own children. The Council as a 
whole is the ‘Corporate Parent’, therefore all Members have a level of responsibility 
for care experienced children and young people in Bridgend. 

 
37 In this role, it is suggested that Members consider how each item they consider 

affects care experienced children and young people, and in what way can the 
Committee assist in these areas. 
 

3.8 Scrutiny Champions can greatly support the Committee in this by advising them of 
the ongoing work of the Cabinet Committee Corporate Parenting and particularly 
any decisions or changes which they should be aware of as Corporate Parents. 

 
3.9 The Forward Work Programme for the Committee is attached as Appendix A for 

the Committee’s consideration. 
 
3.10 The Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet to track responses to the 

Committee’s recommendations made at previous meetings is attached as 
Appendix B. 

 
4. Equality implications (including Socio-economic Duty and Welsh Language) 
    
4.1  The Protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act, Socio-economic 

Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh Language have been considered in 

Page 52



 

the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council must consider 
the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the review of policies, 
strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will be no significant or 
unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report.  

 
 
5. Well-being of Future Generations implications and connection to Corporate 

Well-being Objectives 
 
5.1 The Act provides the basis for driving a different kind of public service in Wales,  

with 5 Ways of Working to guide how public services should work to deliver for 
people. The following is a summary to show how the 5 Ways of Working to achieve 
the well-being goals have been used to formulate the recommendations within this 
report: 

 

• Long-term - The approval of this report will assist in the planning of Scrutiny 
business in both the short-term and in the long-term on its policies, budget and 
service delivery. 
 

• Prevention - The early preparation of the Forward Work Programme allows for 
the advance planning of Scrutiny business where Members are provided an 
opportunity to influence and improve decisions before they are made by 
Cabinet. 

 

• Integration - The report supports all the wellbeing objectives. 
 

• Collaboration - Consultation on the content of the Forward Work Programme 
has taken place with the Corporate Management Board, Heads of Service and 
Elected Members. 

 

• Involvement - Advanced publication of the Forward Work Programme ensures 
that stakeholders can view topics that will be discussed in Committee meetings 
and are provided with the opportunity to engage. 

 

5.2  When setting its Forward Work Programme, the Committee should consider how 
each item they propose to scrutinise assists in the achievement of the Council’s 4 
Wellbeing Objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 
2015 as follows: 

 
1. A prosperous place with thriving communities 
2. Creating modern, seamless public services 
3. Enabling people to meet their potential 
4. Supporting our most vulnerable 
 
 

6. Climate Change and Nature Implications  
 
6.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects climate 

change, the Council’s Net Zero Carbon 2030 target and how it meets the Council’s 
commitments to protect and sustain the environment over the long term. There are 
no Climate Change or Nature Implications arising from this report.    
 
 

Page 53



 

7. Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications 
 
7.1 The Committee should consider how each item they scrutinise affects care 

experienced children and young people, and in what way the Committee can assist 
in these areas. Safeguarding is everyone’s business and means protecting peoples’ 
health, wellbeing and human rights, and enabling them to live free from harm, abuse 
and neglect. There are no Safeguarding and Corporate Parent Implications arising 
from this report.    

 
 
8.  Financial Implications  
 
8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
 
9. Recommendation 

 
9.1   The Committee is recommended to: 

 
a) Consider and approve the Forward Work Programme for the Committee in 

Appendix A.  
 

b) Identify any specific information the Committee wishes to be included in the 
items for the next two meetings, including invitees they wish to attend; 
 

c) Identify whether there are presently any further items for consideration on the 
Forward Work Programme having regard to the selection criteria in paragraph 
3.5 of this report. 
 

d) Note the Recommendations Monitoring Action Sheet in Appendix B to track 
outstanding responses to the Committee’s recommendations made at previous 
meetings; 
 

e) Note that the Committee’s Forward Work Programme as approved will be 
reported to the next meeting of Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 
information, together with those from the other Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees, following their consideration in this cycle of Committee meetings. 

 
 

Background documents 
 
None.  

Page 54



APPENDIX A 
 

Communities, Environment and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
2025-26 Forward Work Programme 

 
Monday, 14 July 2025 at 4pm 

 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

Community Asset 
Transfers 
 

Position Update 
 
Outcome of review recommended 
by SOSC 3 to be undertaken by 
the Community Asset Transfer 
(CAT) Steering Group to assess 
and review the Council’s current 
CAT programme, considering:  
 

• Its impact  

• Success stories  

• Good practice researched 

from other Welsh local 

authorities  

• Reflection on lessons learned  

Cabinet Member  
Cabinet Member for Climate 
Change and the Environment; 
 
Officers  
Corporate Director – Communities; 
Interim Head of Operations – 
Communities; and 
Community Asset Transfer Officer.  
 

Porthcawl 
Regeneration 
Masterplan  

Public Consultation Feedback 
from Feb/March 2025 
 
and  
 
Pre-Planning Consultation 
 

Cabinet Member  
Cabinet Member for Regeneration, 
Economic Development and 
Housing; 
 
Officers  
Corporate Director – Communities;  
Group Manager – Strategic 
Regeneration; and 
Porthcawl Regeneration 
Programme Manager.  

 
 

Monday, 29 September 2025 at 4pm 
 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

United Kingdom 
Shared Prosperity 
Fund Update 
 

• What we did 

• Lessons Learned 

• Progress Update 

• How the system has changed 

• A look back and a look 

forward.  

Detailed Financial Information 
including: 

• Funds received by which 

groups/organisations   

• Their purpose  

• How much 

Cabinet Member  
Cabinet Member for Regeneration, 
Economic Development and 
Housing; 
 
Officers  
Corporate Director – Communities;  
Interim Head of Operations – 
Communities; and 
Group Manager – Economy, Natural 
Resources & Sustainability. 

Page 55



APPENDIX A 
 

 
Social Housing 
Allocation Policy 

 
Pre-Decision 

 
Cabinet Member  
Cabinet Member for Regeneration, 
Economic Development and 
Housing;  
 
Officers  
Chief Officer – Finance, Housing 
and Change;  
Strategic Housing Commissioning 
Manager; 
Housing Solutions Team Manager. 
 

 
 
 

Monday, 3 November 2025 at 4pm 
 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

 
Net Zero Strategy 
Review 
 

 
Pre-Decision 

 
Cabinet Member  
Cabinet Member for Climate 
Change and Environment; 
 
Officers  
Corporate Director – Communities; 
Interim Head of Operations – 
Communities; 
Group Manager – Economy, Natural 
Resources & Sustainability; 
Decarbonisation Programme 
Manager 
 
 

 
Electric Vehicle 
Charging Strategy 
 

 
Pre-Decision 

 
Cabinet Member  
Cabinet Member for Climate 
Change and Environment; 
 
Officers  
Corporate Director – Communities; 
Interim Head of Operations – 
Communities; 
Group Manager – Economy, Natural 
Resources & Sustainability. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



APPENDIX A 
 

Monday, 8 December 2025 at 4pm 
 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

Porthcawl 
Regeneration 
 

 Cabinet Member  
Cabinet Member for Regeneration, 
Economic Development and 
Housing; 
 
Officers  
Corporate Director – Communities;  
Group Manager – Strategic 
Regeneration; 
Porthcawl Regeneration 
Programme Manager.  
 
  

 

Monday, 23 February 2026 at 4pm 
 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

Maesteg Town Hall 
TBC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Grand Pavillion TBC 
 

To include a walkaround before 
the meeting. 
 
Lessons learned 
 
To include: 
- Reasons for the overall project 
cost;  
- Detail of what led to the 
increased cost and challenges 
encountered; and  
- An appraisal of what could have 
changed or been done differently.  

Cabinet Member  
Cabinet Member for Regeneration, 
Economic Development and 
Housing; 
 
Officers  
Corporate Director – Communities;  
Group Manager – Strategic 
Regeneration. 

 

Monday, 20 April 2026 at 4pm 
 

Report Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

Condition of the 
Highways and Status 
of Road Resurfacing 
Programme 

Including: 
- Repairs, maintenance and 
prioritisation process; 
- Road resurfacing and potholes;  
- Network management of         
utilities; and  
- The development of internal 
metrics for repairs and closing 
referrals. 

Cabinet Member  
Cabinet Member for Climate 
Change and the Environment; 
 
Officers  
Corporate Director – Communities; 
Interim Head of Operations – 
Communities;  
Group Manager – Highways and 
Green Spaces; 
Highways Network Manager. 

Page 57



APPENDIX A 
 

Briefings: 
 

Topic Information Required / 
Committee’s Role 

Invitees 

Future Waste Services   All Member Briefing    
To be scheduled Early 2026 

Corporate Joint 
Committees Regional 
Responsibilities 

 All Member Briefing 
Date to be confirmed 

Revised Social 
Housing Allocation 
Policy 

The changes especially in 
respect of the bands and how 
properties will be allocated. 

All Member Briefing  
Date to be arranged in line with 
final adoption of Policy 

 

Items to be Scheduled to the Committee’s Forward Work Programme - To be 
discussed in next Scrutiny Forward Work Programme Planning Meeting 

 

• Bridgend Town Centre Masterplan and Regeneration (Committee requested at 

meeting on 3 Nov 25 that this item be scheduled for consideration as soon as 

possible).   

• Communities Directorate Target Operating Model (TOM) – Autumn 2025 TBC 

• Council’s Preparedness to Respond to Storms and Adverse Weather, to include: 

-    Preventative measures against foreseeable damage; 
- Impact of adverse weather and any fallout (e.g. loss of power) on vulnerable 

residents; 
- Invitees from Communities and Social Services; and 
- Information shared during internal and Local Resilience Forum debrief sessions 

held following Storm Darragh and any other inclement weather events. 

• Car Parking Charging Review, to include: 
- Outcome of the review; 
- Free parking offers; and 
- The difference in revenue between the free parking period and a full charging 

model 

• Major Parks in the Borough 

• Valleys to Coast. 

• A report on the CAT Programme to be added to the Forward Work Programme in 12-
18 months to evaluate progress, including an update on the recommendations of an 
internal audit which took place in April 2025, set out in paragraph 2.1.6 of the report. 

• A final UKSPF monitoring report including analysis of the successes and 
lessons learned for future successor funding projects. 

• Homelessness and Housing 

• Street / Utility work including charges 

• Cemeteries Review (Mid 2026) 

• Fleet Services Review (Early 2027) 

• Water quality and pollution and the capacity of the Penybont Wastewater Treatment 
Works to include plans to meet future demand from significant increases in the 
number of properties planned from a number of new developments and that Welsh 
Water and Natural Resources Wales be invited to attend. 
 
 
 

Page 58



APPENDIX A 
 

Information reports to be provided 
 
Audit Wales ‘Springing Forward Asset Management Inspection Report’ – including 
associated Action Plan. 

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Communities, Environment and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 2025-2026 

 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

14 July 2025 Community 
Asset Transfer 
(CAT) Update 
 

The Committee discussed the 
previously proposed significant 
increase in charges for the use of 
Council-owned pitches and sporting 
facilities and recommended that 
Cabinet consider whether the policy is 
still accurate and fit for purpose in the 
current financial climate and that the 
Deep Dive Group for the Communities 
Directorate explore the charging policy. 

Scrutiny/ Chair Reported to Cabinet 
on 21 October 2025  

Link to Cabinet 
report.  

14 July 2025 Community 
Asset Transfer 
(CAT) Update 
 

The Committee recommended that 
local Members and Town and 
Community Councils be advised of 
CATs that are initiated in their Ward to 
enable engagement and support. 
 

Corporate Director – 
Communities/ 
Interim Head of 
Operations - 
Community 
Services/ 
Community Asset 
Transfer Officer 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025. 

Follow link here. 

14 July 2025 Community 
Asset Transfer 
(CAT) Update 
 

The Committee discussed the reasons, 
including financial considerations, that 
clubs and community groups opt into 
the CAT process or not, including that 
the CAT route enables external funding 
bids to be made by clubs and 
community groups and requested a 

Corporate Director – 
Communities/ 
Interim Head of 
Operations - 
Community 
Services/ 
Community Asset 
Transfer Officer 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025. 

Follow link here. 

P
age 61

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s36778/Communities%20Environment%20and%20Housing%20OS%20Cttee%20Recommendation%20to%20Cabinet.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s36778/Communities%20Environment%20and%20Housing%20OS%20Cttee%20Recommendation%20to%20Cabinet.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s36779/Responses%20to%20Recommendations%20Requests%20-%20SOSC%203%20and%20CEH%20OSC%202025%20002.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s36779/Responses%20to%20Recommendations%20Requests%20-%20SOSC%203%20and%20CEH%20OSC%202025%20002.pdf


 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

list of external funding available to 
such organisations. 

14 July 2025 Community 
Asset Transfer 
(CAT) Update 
 

The Committee requested that, in the 
interests of transparency, minutes of 
meetings of the CAT Steering Group 
be circulated to Members of the 
Committee. 

Corporate Director – 
Communities/ 
Interim Head of 
Operations - 
Community 
Services 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025. 

Follow link here. 

14 July 2025 Community 
Asset Transfer 
(CAT) Update 
 

The Committee requested that they be 
advised when Cabinet are due to 
consider a report on the future of major 
parks in the County Borough 

Corporate Director – 
Communities/ 
Interim Head of 
Operations - 
Community 
Services 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025. 

Follow link here. 

14 July 2025 Community 
Asset Transfer 
(CAT) Update 
 

The Committee requested a written 
update regarding the current lease and 
financial status and condition of the 
two pavilions at Newbridge Fields.  
 

Corporate Director – 
Communities/ 
Interim Head of 
Operations - 
Community 
Services/ 
Community Asset 
Transfer Officer 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025. 

Follow link here. 

29 Sep 2025 
 
 
 

UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund  

Members discussed the Council’s 
approach set out in the Local 
Investment Plan, to the United 
Kingdom Shared Prosperity Fund 
(UKSPF), which had emphasised three 
themes - Communities and Place, 
Supporting Local Business, and 

Corporate Director – 
Communities/ 
Interim Head of 
Operations - 
Community 
Services/ Group 
Manager – 

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting response 
– to be provided. 

 

P
age 62

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s36779/Responses%20to%20Recommendations%20Requests%20-%20SOSC%203%20and%20CEH%20OSC%202025%20002.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s36779/Responses%20to%20Recommendations%20Requests%20-%20SOSC%203%20and%20CEH%20OSC%202025%20002.pdf
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/s36779/Responses%20to%20Recommendations%20Requests%20-%20SOSC%203%20and%20CEH%20OSC%202025%20002.pdf


 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

People and Skills. Whilst the 
Committee acknowledged that a lot of 
different projects across the County 
Borough had been funded, it was also 
expressed that the approach lacked a 
guiding thread, a clear and transparent 
account of how projects had been 
prioritised, and how the success and 
value of them were being measured. 
The Committee therefore 
recommended that the approach to 
future UKSPF successor funding 
projects should proactively and clearly 
set out the following: 
 
a. The guiding strategic aims.  
b. Establish what the project is about 

and what it should deliver.  
c. The agreed objectives, targets and 

outputs.  
d. The criteria for awarding grants.  
e. The measures of success and 

value to be monitored. 
f. The approach to contingency 

planning. 
 

Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability 
 

29 Sep 2025 UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund 

The Committee requested that a final 
UKSPF monitoring report, including a 
complete analysis of the successes 

Corporate Director – 
Communities/ 
Interim Head of 

Recommendations 
circulated 

 

P
age 63



 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

and the lessons learned for future 
projects for consideration by the 
Committee as soon as feasible and to 
include:  
 
a. details of how the public, 

businesses and community 
organisations were informed and 
supported to make full use of 
available funding, including how the 
Bridgend County Prosperity Co-
Production   Framework had 
informed decision-making about the 
UKSPF.  

b. detailed information regarding the 
feasibility studies funded by the 
UKSPF and how many have or will 
become viable projects. 

c. detailed evaluation of the 
sustainability of jobs created across 
the three themes as a result of 
UKSPF funding, to include the 
monitoring processes and the 
support offered by BCBC; and 

d. detailed information about the 
impact the cut in funding during the 
transition year had on projects in 
the community. 

Operations - 
Community 
Services/ Group 
Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability 
 

requesting response 
– to be provided. 

P
age 64



 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

29 Sep 2025 UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund 

The Committee noted that there was a 
lack of clarity about what the successor 
to UKSPF would be like and how it 
would work and requested that once 
known, Members receive information 
about it, including details of the 
proposals to engage with communities 
through the Council’s partnership 
structures about the criteria for 
applying for funding. 
 

Corporate Director – 
Communities/ 
Interim Head of 
Operations - 
Community 
Services/ Group 
Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability 
 

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting response 
– to be provided. 

 

29 Sep 2025 UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund 

The Committee requested more 
information about the assistance that 
could be provided to organisations to 
apply for alternative sources of 
funding, once UKSPF funding comes 
to an end. 
 

Corporate Director – 
Communities/ 
Interim Head of 
Operations - 
Community 
Services/ Group 
Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources & 
Sustainability 

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting response 
– to be provided. 

 

29 Sep 2025 UK Shared 
Prosperity Fund 

The Committee requested that 
previous reports about the UKSPF 
considered by scrutiny committees be 
distributed to Members.  
 

Scrutiny Complete Links to reports: 
26 Sep 2022  
and 
19 June 2023.  

29 Sep 2025 Social Housing 
Allocation Policy 
 

The Committee expressed concern 
that there were approximately 3300 
people on the housing register and 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, Housing 
and Change/ 

Recommendations 
circulated 

 

P
age 65

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/g4332/Public%20reports%20pack%2026th-Sep-2022%2016.00%20Communities%20Environment%20and%20Housing%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny.pdf?T=10
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/documents/g4496/Public%20reports%20pack%2019th-Jun-2023%2016.00%20Communities%20Environment%20and%20Housing%20Overview%20and%20Scrutiny.pdf?T=10


 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

there was an urgent need to address 
the fundamental mismatch between 
the demand for and the supply of 
available housing, particularly social 
housing, in the County Borough. The 
Committee therefore recommended 
that:  
 
a. The Communities ‘deep dive’, 

consider potential ideas to address 
the shortfall in the supply of 
housing, and; 

b. That the Strategy and Action Plans 
be updated setting out the steps 
being taken to urgently address this 
position.  

 

Strategic Housing 
Commissioning 
Manager 
 

requesting response 
– to be provided. 

29 Sep 2025 Social Housing 
Allocation Policy 
 

The Committee requested that an All-
Member Briefing session be provided 
regarding the revised Social Housing 
Allocation Policy and how it will 
change, especially in respect of the 
bandings and how properties will be 
allocated. 
 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, Housing 
and Change/ 
Strategic Housing 
Commissioning 
Manager 
 

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting response 
– to be provided. 

 

29 Sep 2025 Social Housing 
Allocation Policy 
 

The Committee requested additional 
information regarding the impact of the 
Welsh Government’s Nation of 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, Housing 
and Change/ 
Strategic Housing 

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting response 
– to be provided. 

 

P
age 66



 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

Sanctuary Plan on the draft Social 
Housing Allocation Policy. 

Commissioning 
Manager 
 

29 Sep 2025 Social Housing 
Allocation Policy 
 

The Committee requested additional 
information about both the statutory 
and non-statutory review processes, 
including the number, the outcomes, 
and the steps taken to ensure fairness 
and the consistent application of policy. 

Chief Officer – 
Finance, Housing 
and Change/ 
Strategic Housing 
Commissioning 
Manager 
 

Recommendations 
circulated 
requesting response 
– to be provided. 

 

3 Oct 2025 
 
 
 

Call-in of 
Cabinet 
decision: 
Bridgend Town 
Centre Access 

Following its examination of the decision  
and detailed discussions with the Cabinet  
Members and Officers invited, the 
Committee decided to recommend that the  
decision be referred back to Cabinet for  
reconsideration for the reasons agreed.  

Scrutiny / Chair Reported to Cabinet 
on 21 October 2025 

Link to report.  

3 Nov 2025 
 
 
 

Net Zero 
Strategy  
and 
Electric Vehicle 
Charging 
Strategy   

Various – drafted / to be circulated Senior Democratic 
Servies Officer - 
Scrutiny 

  

 

P
age 67

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13550


T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Communities, Environment and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

RECOMMENDATIONS MONITORING ACTION SHEET 2024-2025 

 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

17 February 
2025 

Climate Change 
Response and 
Decarbonisation 
Activity 
Bridgend 
County Borough 

The Committee expressed concern and 
requested an explanation setting out 
why the cross-party Member Committee 
to oversee the Climate Emergency 
Response Programme, agreed by 
Cabinet on 30 June 2020, had not been 
established and instead, that the 
Subject Overview Scrutiny Committee 3 
had been given the remit for Climate 
Change and Nature and recommended 
that consideration be given to the cross-
party Member Committee being 
established for the purposes intended. 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Climate 
Change Response 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 

Follow link here.  

17 February 
2025 

Climate Change 
Response and 
Decarbonisation 
Activity 
Bridgend 
County Borough 

The Committee was advised that the 
Bridgend 2030 Net Zero Carbon 
Strategy (the Strategy) was under 
review and that a report would be 
presented to a subsequent meeting of 
the Committee providing detail on what 
had been accomplished, the 
achievability of the ambitions and the 
necessary steps to progress it. 
 
The Committee welcomed the proposed 
report but expressed their 
disappointment that it appeared that 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Climate 
Change Response 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 
 

Follow link here. 

P
age 69

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13548
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13548


 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

some aspects of the plan would not 
work and therefore were taken no 
further and their concern that there did 
not appear to be any delivery or decisive 
action taken in relation to the Strategy 
which was already at its halfway stage.  
The Committee therefore 
recommended that an action plan be 
put in place to include detail on the 
following:  
 

- Timescales;  

- The objectives and achievement 
attained; 

- How the public are being engaged 
and listened to, including the means 
by which the community are 
engaged; and 

- The possibility of an annual 
engagement day.     

17 February 
2025 

Climate Change 
Response and 
Decarbonisation 
Activity 
Bridgend 
County Borough 

The Committee discussed the impact of 
river flooding in the Valley areas causing 
erosion of the riverbank and 
encroaching onto gardens, fence lines 
and properties, acknowledged that it 
was a worrying situation for a those 
affected and recommended that the 
Council approach Welsh Government to 
request some safeguarding for those 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Climate 
Change Response 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 

Follow link here. 

P
age 70

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13548


 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

individuals who may be in danger of 
flooding to their homes and property in 
the future. 

17 February 
2025 

Climate Change 
Response and 
Decarbonisation 
Activity 
Bridgend 
County Borough 

Members were advised that the 
expectations arising from the Senedd 
Climate Committee’s Halting and 
Reversing the Loss of Nature by 2023 
report remain unclear as Welsh 
Government had yet to respond to the 
recommendations contained within. The 
Committee recommended that a letter 
be written to Welsh Government asking 
when a response is to be expected, in 
order to provide an understanding of the 
potential impact and challenges those 
recommendations could have on local 
authorities. 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Climate 
Change Response 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 
 

Follow link here. 

17 February 
2025 

Climate Change 
Response and 
Decarbonisation 
Activity 
Bridgend 
County Borough 

The Committee requested further 
detail/information regarding the national 
position, across all 22 Welsh local 
authorities, setting out their approach to 
Climate Change and Decarbonisation. 
The Committee expressed that it was 
important that Bridgend’s Strategy 
aligns with other local authorities 
recognising that carbon capture does 
not stop at boundary lines. In addition, 
the Committee discussed the existence 
of strategic development plans for 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Climate 
Change Response 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 
 

Follow link here. 

P
age 71

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13548
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13548


 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

planning large scale properties and 
queried why there was no equivalent 
plan for Net Zero Carbon 2030 and 
recommended that consideration be 
given to including this in a future report 
to the Committee. 
 

17 February 
2025 

Climate Change 
Response and 
Decarbonisation 
Activity 
Bridgend 
County Borough 

The Committee requested a copy of the 
Climate Change Risk Assessment which 
was undertaken in partnership with the 
Cwm Taf Morgannwg Public Service 
Board (PSB) and highlighted 11 climate 
risk priority areas across the PSB. The 
Committee also requested information 
regarding the actions being taken by the 
Health Board to respond to the action 
plan including any works to their 
buildings within the County Borough to 
make them more energy efficient. 
 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Climate 
Change Response 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 
 

Follow link here. 

17 February 
2025 

Climate Change 
Response and 
Decarbonisation 
Activity 
Bridgend 
County Borough 

The Committee requested further 
information regarding the Bridgend 
Local Nature Partnership to include 
details of its membership, how often it 
meets and its agenda in order to 
understand whether it could be used as 
a key engagement tool. 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Climate 
Change Response 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 

Follow link here. 

P
age 72

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13548
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13548


 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

17 February 
2025 

Climate Change 
Response and 
Decarbonisation 
Activity 
Bridgend 
County Borough 

Members discussed Electric Vehicle 
charging points, how long it took to 
complete repairs and whose 
responsibility it was to do so. Whilst the 
Committee acknowledged that it had 
been necessary for public bodies to lead 
the way in installing electric vehicle 
charging points, there was now an 
increased demand and need for higher 
voltage charging points. The Committee 
therefore requested whether 
consideration should be given to the 
Council leaving the market and 
facilitating the supply by private 
companies. 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Climate 
Change Response 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 
 

Follow link here. 

17 February 
2025 

Climate Change 
Response and 
Decarbonisation 
Activity 
Bridgend 
County Borough 

The Committee requested information 
regarding how much of the £1.4m 
funding for electric vehicles and 
infrastructure had been spent on 
infrastructure, why the Council was not 
deriving an income from it and regarding 
the public charging points 
commissioned by the Cardiff Capital 
Region on Council land: 

- Whether there was shared revenue?  

- Were there possibilities for revenue 
generation?  

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Climate 
Change Response 
Manager 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 
 

Follow link here. 

P
age 73

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13548
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13548


 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

- Whether capital expenditure to 
generate revenue been 
investigated?  

7 April 2025 Bridgend 
County Borough 
Net Zero 
Strategy Review 
 

The Committee discussed the 
challenges of the Authority achieving 
Net Zero Carbon 2030 and 
recommended that consideration be 
given to approaching the Welsh Local 
Government Association (WLGA) to 
seek clarity as to the current status of 
strategies to reach net zero by 2030 in 
the other Welsh local authorities, 
following which, if  other Welsh  local 
authorities are experiencing similar 
challenges, the Committee further 
recommended that a follow-up request 
be made to ask the WLGA to make the 
Welsh Government aware of the 
situation and consider extending  its net 
zero carbon strategy from 2030 to align 
it with that of the UK Government, to 
reach net zero by 2050.  

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Group 
Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources and 
Sustainability 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 
 

Follow link here. 

7 April 2025 Bridgend 
County Borough 
Net Zero 
Strategy Review 
 

The Committee recommended that the 
final version of the report by the Carbon 
Trust provide clarity as to the 
governance arrangements for the 
strategy including Member 
representation, for clear political 
leadership. 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Group 
Manager – 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 

Follow link here.  

P
age 74

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13549
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13549


 
 APPENDIX B 

 
 

Date of 
Meeting 

Agenda Item Action Responsibility Outcome Response 

Economy, Natural 
Resources and 
Sustainability 

7 April 2025 Bridgend 
County Borough 
Net Zero 
Strategy Review 
 

The Committee recommended that the 
strategy include focus on practical and 
achievable goals and that the carbon 
footprint of the supply chain be an 
appropriate priority. 

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Group 
Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources and 
Sustainability 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 

Follow link here. 

7 April 2025 Bridgend 
County Borough 
Net Zero 
Strategy Review 
 

The Committee recommended that the 
revised strategy be shared for a 12-
week public consultation, as there was a 
need to engage with the public and 
obtain views of residents and 
stakeholders of the county borough.  

Corporate Director 
for Communities/ 
Head of 
Operations – 
Community 
Services/ Group 
Manager – 
Economy, Natural 
Resources and 
Sustainability 
 

ACTIONED – 
response and 
information 
circulated 3 
November 2025 
 

Follow link here. 

 

P
age 75

https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13549
https://democratic.bridgend.gov.uk/ecCatDisplay.aspx?sch=doc&cat=13549


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	ourref1
	yourref1

	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	Minutes , 03/10/2025 Communities, Environment and Housing Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Formerly Subject Overview & Scrutiny Committee 3)

	4 Adfywio Porthcawl
	4i - Appendix 1  Porthcawl Waterfront Illustrative Masterplan
	4ii - Appendix 2 Building Heights Parameter Plan
	4iii - Appendix 3 Hillsboro South Public Realm
	2440-URB-XX-XX-DR-L-0201-Landcape Masterplan-P01

	4iv - Appendix 4 Temporary Fun Fair Site Salt Lake

	6 Diweddariad Rhaglen Gwaith
	6a - Appendix A - FWP - CEH OSC
	6bi - Appendix B - Action Sheet CEH OSC - 2025-26
	6bii - Appendix B - Action Sheet SOSC 3 - 2024-25


